
County Offices
Newland

Lincoln
LN1 1YL

15 February 2018

Council

A meeting of the Council will be held on Friday, 23 February 2018 in the Council 
Chamber, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL, commencing at 10.00 am 
for the transaction of the business set out on the attached Agenda.   The attendance of 
all Councillors is requested.

Yours sincerely

Tony McArdle
Chief Executive

Membership of the Council  
(70 Members of the Council)

Councillors A G Hagues (Chairman), C R Oxby (Vice-Chairman), B Adams, W J Aron, 
T R Ashton, Mrs A M Austin, M D Boles, Mrs W Bowkett, Mrs P A Bradwell, 
D Brailsford, C J T H Brewis, T Bridges, Mrs J Brockway, M Brookes, R D Butroid, 
L A Cawrey, K J Clarke, Mrs K Cook, Mrs P Cooper, P E Coupland, G E Cullen, 
C J Davie, R G Davies, B M Dobson, S R Dodds, M T Fido, I G Fleetwood, 
R L Foulkes, M A Griggs, R Grocock, M J Hill OBE, R J Kendrick, P M Key, 
Mrs J E Killey, S R Kirk, Mrs C J Lawton, C S Macey, C E H Marfleet, C Matthews, 
A P Maughan, D McNally, Mrs A M Newton, Mrs M J Overton MBE, R B Parker, 
N H Pepper, Mrs C L Perraton-Williams, E J Poll, Mrs S Rawlins, C E Reid, 
R P H Reid, R A Renshaw, S P Roe, P A Skinner, Mrs E J Sneath, A J Spencer, 
H Spratt, A N Stokes, M J Storer, C L Strange, E W Strengiel, Mrs C A Talbot, 
Dr M E Thompson, R H Trollope-Bellew, A H Turner MBE JP, M A Whittington, 
Mrs S Woolley, L Wootten, R Wootten, C N Worth and B Young

Public Document Pack





COUNCIL AGENDA
FRIDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2018

Item Title Pages 

1 Apologies for Absence 

2 Declarations of Councillors' Interests 

3 Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 15 December 
2017 

5 - 12

4 Chairman's Announcements 

5 Questions to the Chairman, the Leader, Executive 
Councillors, Chairman of Committees and Sub-Committees 

6 Council Budget 2018/19 13 - 20

7 Council Business Plan 2018-2020 21 - 62

8 Interim Arrangements following the Resignation of the Chief 
Executive 

63 - 150

9 Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board Membership 
Review 

151 - 162

10 Members Allowance Scheme 2018/19 163 - 184

11 Pay Policy Statement 185 - 204

12 Motions on Notice Submitted in accordance with the 
Council's Constitution 



Democratic Services Officer Contact Details 

Name: Rachel Wilson

Direct Dial 01522 552107

E Mail Address rachel.wilson@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact 
the Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting

 Business of the meeting
 Any special arrangements
 Copies of reports

Contact details set out above.

Please note: This meeting will be broadcast live on the internet and access 
can be sought by accessing http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/local-
democracy/council-webcasts/

All papers for council meetings are available on: 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/local-democracy/council-webcasts/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/local-democracy/council-webcasts/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/committeerecords


1

COUNCIL
15 DECEMBER 2017

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR  A G HAGUES (CHAIRMAN)

Councillors C R Oxby (Vice-Chairman), B Adams, W J Aron, T R Ashton, 
Mrs A M Austin, M D Boles, Mrs P A Bradwell, D Brailsford, C J T H Brewis, 
T Bridges, Mrs J Brockway, R D Butroid, L A Cawrey, K J Clarke, Mrs K Cook, 
Mrs P Cooper, P E Coupland, C J Davie, R G Davies, B M Dobson, S R Dodds, 
M T Fido, I G Fleetwood, R L Foulkes, M A Griggs, R Grocock, M J Hill OBE, 
R J Kendrick, P M Key, Mrs J E Killey, Mrs C J Lawton, C S Macey, C E H Marfleet, 
C Matthews, A P Maughan, D McNally, Mrs M J Overton MBE, R B Parker, 
N H Pepper, Mrs C L Perraton-Williams, E J Poll, Mrs S Rawlins, C E Reid, 
R P H Reid, R A Renshaw, S P Roe, P A Skinner, Mrs E J Sneath, A J Spencer, 
H Spratt, A N Stokes, M J Storer, C L Strange, E W Strengiel, Mrs C A Talbot, 
Dr M E Thompson, R H Trollope-Bellew, A H Turner MBE JP, M A Whittington, 
Mrs S Woolley, L Wootten, R Wootten, C N Worth and B Young

41    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mrs W Bowkett, M Brookes, G 
E Cullen, S R Kirk and Mrs A M Newton.

It was noted that Councillors M A Whittington, L Wootten and R Wootten would be 
late arriving at the meeting.

42    DECLARATIONS OF COUNCILLORS' INTERESTS

Councillor D McNally declared an interest in agenda item 9 – Lincolnshire Minerals 
and Waste Local Plan: Site Locations and advised that he would leave the Council 
Chamber during consideration of this item.

Councillor Mrs K Cook wished that it be noted in relation to the petition being 
submitted relating to Norton Disney, that she sat on the Planning Committee for 
North Kesteven District Council and had attended a pre-application meeting.

Councillor L A Cawrey wished that it be noted in relation to the petition being 
submitted relating to Norton Disney, that she was the Executive Member for Cultural 
Services and Development Management (Planning) on North Kesteven District 
Council and was the Chairman of the Pre-Application Forum.

Councillor M J Overton MBE wished that it be noted in relation to the petition being 
submitted relating to Norton Disney, that she had attended a pre-application meeting.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2
COUNCIL
15 DECEMBER 2017

43    MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD ON 15 
SEPTEMBER 2017

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 15 September 2017 be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.

44    SUBMISSION OF PETITIONS

Petition requesting that Lincolnshire County Council resurface St Bernard's Avenue, 
Louth

In accordance with the Petitions Scheme, Councillor Ros Jackson from East Lindsey 
District Council spoke in explanation of the petition requesting that Lincolnshire 
County Council resurface St Bernard's Avenue, Louth.

It was reported that the Chief Executive had determined that the petition be referred 
to the Executive Councillor for Highways, Transport and IT.

Petition requesting that Lincolnshire County Council take account of community 
concerns within the Witham Valley Park area regarding the proposal by Lincoln 
Proteins Ltd to build an animal rendering plant at Norton Disney

In accordance with the Petition Scheme, Ms Oli Husemeyer spoke in explanation of 
the petition requesting that Lincolnshire County Council take account of community 
concerns within the Witham Valley Park area regarding the proposal by Lincoln 
Proteins Ltd to build an animal rendering plant at Norton Disney.

It was reported that the Chief Executive had determined that the petition requesting 
that Lincolnshire County Council take account of community concerns within the 
Witham Valley Park area regarding the proposal by Lincoln Proteins Ltd to build an 
animal rendering plant at Norton Disney, be referred to the Planning and Regulation 
Committee, to be included for the Committee's consideration in the Head of 
Planning's report to the relevant meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee, 
if the development was submitted as a formal planning application.

45    CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman reported that he had continued to carry out his civic engagements with 
pride representing this Council by meeting people and visiting places around the 
County.  

The Chairman thanked his Lady for supporting him on these engagements and also 
the Vice-Chairman and Lady, Councillor Ron Oxby and Mrs Di Oxby, for representing 
them at civic functions when they had been unable to attend. 

Page 6



3
COUNCIL

15 DECEMBER 2017

The Chairman reported that it had been an honour to be involved in the 
Remembrance Day commemorations in Lincoln Cathedral which was well supported 
and attended by hundreds of people.  

Lincolnshire was delighted to welcome HRH The Princess Royal when she visited 
SENSE in Bourne, officially opened the Heckington Windmill Regeneration Project 
and the new premises of Lintran in Faldingworth.

The Chairman reported the death of Mr Tony Worth CVO, who served as Her 
Majesty's Lord-Lieutenant of Lincolnshire from 2008 – 2015.  A memorial service was 
to be held in Lincoln Cathedral on Friday 12th January 2018, at 11.00am.  The 
Chairman advised that he was intending to attend to represent the Council.

46    STATEMENTS/ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE LEADER AND MEMBERS OF 
THE EXECUTIVE

Statements by the Leader and Members of the Executive had been circulated with 
the agenda.  Members were requested to note the update in the Order of 
Proceedings to Councillor E J Poll's statement in relation to the following section:

Strategic Planning (page 38 of the agenda)

City of Lincoln, North Kesteven and West Lindsey Community Infrastructure Levy 
(CIL)

City of Lincoln did adopt the CIL at its meeting on 5 December 2017.

47    QUESTIONS TO THE CHAIRMAN, THE LEADER, EXECUTIVE 
COUNCILLORS, CHAIRMAN OF COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES

Questions pursuant to Council Procedure Rule 10.3 were asked and answered as 
follows:

Question by Answered by Subject

a) Mrs J E Killey C N Worth Heritage services

b) C J T H Brewis M J Hill OBE  Fairer funding update

c) A P Maughan C J Davie Tackling the skills gap

d) K J Clarke R G Davies Yellow lines and Traffic 
Regulation Orders

e) Mrs M J Overton 
MBE

R G Davies Funding for highways 
projects

Page 7



4
COUNCIL
15 DECEMBER 2017

f) S R Dodds Mrs S Woolley Recruitment of doctors

g) P M Key R G Davies Streetlights

h) E W Strengiel M J Hill OBE Support for Fairer 
Funding Campaign

i) Mrs A M Austin C J Davie Boston Barrier

j) R B Parker M J Hill OBE Council budget from 
April 2019 onwards

k) D McNally Mrs S Woolley Thames Ambulance 
Service Ltd

48    APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
MANAGEMENT BOARD

A report by the Executive Director responsible for Democratic Services had been 
circulated.

It was moved, seconded and

RESOLVED

1. That Councillor R Wootten be appointed to the position of Vice-Chairman of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board.

2. That the change of Executive Support Councillor for Culture and Emergency 
Services be noted.

49    LINCOLNSHIRE MINERALS AND WASTE LOCAL PLAN: SITE 
LOCATIONS

(NOTE: Councillor D McNally left the Chamber for consideration of this item)

A report by the Executive Director Environment and Economy had been circulated.

It was moved, seconded and unanimously

RESOLVED

That the Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Site Location document, 
attached at Appendix C to the report, be adopted by the Council.

Page 8



5
COUNCIL

15 DECEMBER 2017

50    APPOINTMENTS TO LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S 
INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL

A report by the Executive Director responsible for Democratic Services had been 
circulated.

It was moved, seconded and unanimously

RESOLVED

That Messrs Richard Quirk RVM and Phillip Knowles be appointed to the 
Lincolnshire County Council Independent Remuneration Panel.

51    AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION

A report by the Monitoring Officer had been circulated.

It was moved, seconded and

RESOLVED

That the proposed amendments to the Constitution, as attached at 
Appendices A, B and C to the report, be approved.

52    MOTIONS SUBMITTED ON NOTICE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION

(1) Motion by Councillor Mrs S Woolley

It was moved and seconded 

The Office for National Statistics (ONS) is now planning what questions will be in the 
next UK census in 2021.  The Royal British Legion (RBL) is currently leading a 
campaign to add questions to the Census regarding our Armed Forces Community.  

It is estimated that one in ten of the population are, or have been, part of the Armed 
Forces Community, yet there is limited information about where they are or what their 
needs might be. 

RBL suggest this is a once in a generation opportunity for change by adding armed 
forces related questions to the 2021 census, thereby improving understanding of the 
Armed Forces Community and their needs for politicians, charities and service 
providers.  

To date, over a third of MPs have pledged their support, along with more than 100 
local authorities and military charities. (See http://www.britishlegion.org.uk/get-
involved/campaign/count-them-in/ 

Page 9

http://www.britishlegion.org.uk/get-involved/campaign/count-them-in/
http://www.britishlegion.org.uk/get-involved/campaign/count-them-in/


6
COUNCIL
15 DECEMBER 2017

Lincolnshire County Council has a proud tradition of supporting the Armed Forces in 
the county, reinforced by the recent resigning of the Lincolnshire Armed Forces 
Community Covenant. 

I therefore move that Lincolnshire County Council registers its support to the 
Royal British Legion Count Them In Campaign on the official website.

Upon being put to the vote, the motion was unanimously carried.

(2) Motion by Councillor R B Parker

It was moved and seconded

The Social Mobility Commission is an independent statutory body first set up in 2010 
and is responsible for ‘promoting social mobility in England, for example, by 
challenging employers, the professions, universities and schools to play their part in 
promoting social mobility'.

On 28 November, the Commission published its annual report State of the Nation 
2017: Social Mobility in Great Britain. The basis of the report is built around the 
Social Mobility Index, which ranks all 324 local authorities in England in terms of their 
social mobility prospects for someone from a disadvantaged background. It uses a 
range of indicators, 16 in total for every major life stage, from early years through 
to working lives, to map social mobility by local authority area.

The ranking of the 7 Lincolnshire councils, using the 16 indicators, is set out below.

Local Authority Overall Ranking 
out of 324 councils

North Kesteven 29
South Holland 112
South Kesteven 128
Boston 141
West Lindsey 165
East Lindsey 227
Lincoln 259

To put these ranking into a national and regional context, London Boroughs filled the 
13 highest rankings for social mobility whilst North Kesteven was the highest placed 
council in the East Midlands. The index shows that ‘the worst performing areas for 
social mobility are no longer inner-city areas but remote rural and coastal areas, and 
former industrial areas…’.
The commission makes a number of recommendations of which three are specific to 
local authorities of which two are related to councils with an education remit.

This report comes at an opportune time as Lincolnshire County Council pursues its 
Fairer Funding campaign to achieve a fairer distribution of government funding, 

Page 10



7
COUNCIL

15 DECEMBER 2017

because it provides yet more evidence of the serious consequences of the present 
formulae. Indeed, the commission in its report ‘calls on government to increase its 
proportion of spending on those parts of the country that most need it.’

Yet at the same time it is recognised in the report that ‘local policies adopted by local 
authorities and employers can influence outcomes for disadvantaged residents’. In 
the light of this report and what it shows about the wide diversity in social mobility 
within our county, this council needs to respond positively. 

Accordingly, this council recognises the pressing need to enhance social 
mobility in our county and asks the Leader and Chief Executive to pursue a 
range of initiatives including 

 examining our current policies to ensure that the council has in 
place ‘an integrated strategy for improving disadvantaged 
children’s outcomes’, 

 ensuring that within our own services, particularly for children and 
young people, that policies are in place which improve social 
mobility rather than reduce it, 

 moving the council to become an accredited living wage employer 
and, as a policy, encourage other employers in Lincolnshire to do 
likewise,

 liaising with Districts Councils and the Lincolnshire Enterprise 
Partnership to take forward a county wide Social Mobility agenda,

 making recommendations for particular pieces of scrutiny work on 
Social Mobility to be undertaken within this council. 

Upon being put to the vote the motion was lost.

The meeting closed at 12.25 pm

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
County Council 

 

Open Report on behalf of Pete Moore, Executive Director Finance and 
Public Protection 

 

Report to: County Council 

Date: 23 February 2018 

Subject: Council Budget 2018/19  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

Council Budget 2018/19 
 
The appended Budget Book - "Council Budget 2018/19" describes the budget 
and council tax proposals recommended to the full Council by the Executive. 
 
Council's Revenue Budget 2017/18 
 
A transfer of £1.500m from Readiness for Schools (Children's Centres) to 
Readiness for Adult Life (Supported Accommodation for Homeless Young 
People) is recommended by the Executive for approval by the Council. 

 
 

Recommendation(s): 

It is recommended that the Council: 
 
1. has due regard to the responses to the consultation on the Council's budget 
proposals as contained in the appended Budget Book (Appendix D - Budget 
Consultation Feedback); 
 
2. has due regard to the Section 151 Officer's Statement on the Robustness of 
the Budget and the Adequacy of Reserves as set out in the appended Budget 
Book (Section 11 - Section 151 Officer's Statement on the Robustness of the 
Budget and Adequacy of Reserves);  
 
3. has due regard to the Impact Analysis relating to increasing the Council Tax 
by 4.95% in 2018/19 set out in the appended 'Budget Book' (Appendix C – 
Impact Analysis relating to increasing the Council Tax by 4.95% in 2018/19); 
 
4. approves: 
 
4.1 the service revenue budgets for 2018/19 contained in the appended Budget 
Book, (Table 4 - Net Service Revenue Budget 2018/19); 
 
4.2 the capital programme and its funding contained in the appended Budget 
Book (Section 8 - Capital Programme) and (Appendix N - Capital Programme); 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

 
4.3 the County Council element of the council tax for a Band D property at 
£1,231.47 for 2018/19 contained in the appended Budget Book (Appendix B - 
County Precept 2018/19); 
 
as together being the Council's Budget. 
 
5. approves the Council's Financial Strategy contained in the appended Budget 
Book (Appendix E – Financial Strategy); 
 
6. approves the Council's Flexible Use of Capital Receipts Strategy contained in 
the appended Budget Book (Appendix G - Flexible Use of Capital Receipts 
Strategy); 
 
7. approves the prudential targets for capital finance and notes the prudential 
indicators contained in the appended Budget Book (Appendix M - Prudential 
Indicators); 
 
8. approves that the minimum revenue provision (MRP) be based on the asset 
life method, charged on an annuity basis for major infrastructure projects and in 
equal instalments for all other assets, over the estimated life of the assets 
acquired through borrowing as set out in the appended Budget Book (Section 
10 - Minimum Revenue Provision). 
 
9. approves the change in the 2017/18 revenue budget as detailed at paragraph 
1.6 to 1.7 of this report. 

 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The final Local Government Finance Settlement, issued on Wednesday 7 
February 2018, provided the Council with levels of funding for 2018/19 and 
indicative figures for 2019/20. 
 
1.2 The recommended budget is based on a two year financial plan for revenue 
and capital budgets, taking the Council to the end of the four year funding deal.  
This is the first time in four years the Council has been able to develop budget 
plans for more than the next financial year.  The Council continues to face 
significant reductions in government funding, growing cost pressures from demand 
led services such as adult and children's social care, waste disposal and the 
Council's responsibility to pay staff and some contractors the National Living Wage.  
Uncertainty around government funding beyond the four year funding deal (which 
runs from 2016/17 to 2019/20) means the Council doesn’t consider it practicable, 
at present, to develop sustainable long term financial plans into the next decade. 
 
1.3 The Council is recommended to set a Council Tax increase of 4.95%. 
 
 

Page 14



 

Consultation 
 
1.4 The Executive put forward a budget for consultation at its meeting on 19 
December 2017.  Since that time comments have been received from all Scrutiny 
Committees and the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board, Businesses, 
Public Organisations, Trade Unions and members of the public. 
 
1.5 A summary of these comments is included within APPENDIX D of the 
appended ‘Budget Book’ and have been taken into account whilst finalising the 
budget proposals.  The majority of the comments are supportive of the budget. 
 
 
Revenue Budget Change 2017/18 
 
1.6 The Executive proposes the following budget change in the 2017/18 revenue 
budget.  A transfer of £1.500m from Readiness for Schools (Children's Centres) to 
Readiness for Adult Life (Supported Accommodation for Homeless Young People). 
 
1.7 There is no reduction in spending on Children's Centres in 2017/18 as the 
Council will utilise £1.500m from the public health grant reserve to meet these 
costs. 
 
 
2. Legal Issues: 
 
Equality Act 2010 

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Council must, in the exercise of its 
functions, have due regard to the need to: 

*           Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under the Act 

*           Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 

*           Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender reassignment; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation 

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to: 

*           Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic 

*           Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it 

*           Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionately low 

Page 15



 

The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from 
the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities 

Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to tackle prejudice, and promote 
understanding 

Compliance with the duties in section 149 may involve treating some persons more 
favourably than others 

The duty cannot be delegated and must be discharged by the decision-maker.  To 
discharge the statutory duty the decision-maker must analyse all the relevant 
material with the specific statutory obligations in mind.  If a risk of adverse impact is 
identified consideration must be given to measures to avoid that impact as part of 
the decision making process 

 
These equality considerations do not preclude changes in services being made, 
but do require that these be fully appreciated.  It is clear that the current and future 
financial challenges facing local authorities and the need for budget savings will 
result in changes to service provision and to some reduction in Council services.  
These will apply to services accessed by all people in Lincolnshire as well as 
services provided to specific groups.  It is possible that there may be an adverse 
impact on some people and communities including those with a protected 
characteristic.  
 
In order to meet its obligations equality impact analyses will be carried out in 
relation to any proposed changes to services on an individual basis.  The specific 
impacts on people with a protected characteristic will be investigated and the 
potential mitigation if any will be made clear, so that the implications of decisions 
are fully understood as they affect specific groups and communities.  These have 
been and will continue to be, regularly reported to the Executive as part of the 
decision making processes. 
 
In the meantime consideration has been given as to whether there is any element 
of the current budget proposals that should be the subject of an equality impact 
analysis at this stage and as a result an assessment (attached at APPENDIX C) 
has been carried out on the proposal to increase Council Tax.  That assessment 
identifies the potential for the proposal to impact on people with low income and 
therefore disproportionately on certain people with a protected characteristics 
including older and younger people, people with a disability and women with 
children.  Overall, however, the increase is modest and each District Council 
operates a Council Tax Support Scheme which has been designed following 
consultation and individual impact analyses to mitigate the effects of Council Tax 
levels on vulnerable people and people with low incomes.  2.00% of the increase is 
specifically to fund adult social care services that support people with protected 
characteristics such as age or disability. 
 
Approval of the budget is not a final decision about what the Council's services will 
be or about how much money will be saved under any particular proposals. 

Page 16



 

Individual proposals will only be implemented after due regard to the legal matters 
that must be considered including the public sector equality duty. 
 
As part of its decision-making the Executive will need to consider whether any 
alternative approaches could alleviate or at least mitigate the impact of the decision 
such as making reductions in other areas which do not have the same impacts, 
including particularly equality impacts.  The result could be to require additional 
resources to be used in certain areas than has been budgeted for.  In this event 
the usual budget management processes such as virement would be followed and 
approval sought at the appropriate levels in accordance with Financial Regulations 
including full Council where necessary.  In particular a contingency has been built 
into the budget proposals in the form of the Financial Volatility Reserve (the 
balance is estimated to be £54.765m after use to balance the 2018/19 and 
£31.267m after use to balance the 2019/20 budget) and the annual Contingency 
budget of £3.000m for 2018/19, for when additional funding cannot be found by 
way of virement from other service areas. 
 

 

Joint Strategic Needs Analysis (JSNA and the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(JHWS) 

The Council must have regard to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
and the Joint Health & Well Being Strategy (JHWS) in coming to a decision 

 
Approval of the budget is not a final decision about what the Council's services will 
be or about how much money will be saved under any particular proposals. 
Individual proposals will only be implemented after due regard to the legal matters 
that must be considered including the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint 
Health and Well-being Strategy. 
 

 

Crime and Disorder 

Under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council must exercise its 
various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those 
functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour adversely affecting 
the local environment), the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its 
area and re-offending in its area 

 

 

 
Approval of the budget is not a final decision about what the Council's services will 
be or about how much money will be saved under any particular proposals. 
Individual proposals will only be implemented after due regard to the legal matters 
that must be considered including the duty under section 17 of the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1988. 
 

Page 17



 

3. Conclusion 
 
3.1 The budget proposals aim to reflect the Council's priorities whilst operating 
within reduced resources and include funding essential cost pressures of 
£26.888m and making savings of £23.175m in 2018/19.  They are based on a use 
of the Financial Volatility Reserve of £1.776m and a 4.95% increase in Council 
Tax.

 

4. Legal Comments: 
 

Council Budget 2018/19 
 
Robust decision making requires that the results of the Council's budget 
consultation as well as the Section 151 Officer’s Statement on the Robustness of 
the Budget and the Adequacy of the Reserves and the Impact Analysis on the 
4.95% increase in Council Tax are taken into account by the County Council in 
coming to its decision.  Compliance with recommendations 1, 2 and 3 ensures 
that this is done. 
 
With regard to recommendation 4 under the law and the Constitution it is for the 
County Council to approve the Budget. 
 
With regard to recommendation 5 approval of the Financial Strategy is within the 
remit of the Council. 
 
With regard to recommendation 6, Statutory Guidance on the Flexible Use of 
Capital Receipts (updated) issued by the Department of Communities and Local 
Government in March 2016 states that the Council's Flexible Use of Capital 
Receipts Strategy should be approved by full Council. 
 
With regard to recommendation 7, Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 
requires a local authority to determine and keep under review how much money it 
can afford to borrow.  The determination must be made by County Council.  The 
prudential targets include the Council’s borrowing limit and must therefore be 
approved by the County Council.  
 
Regarding recommendation 8, the requirement to make a minimum revenue 
provision that is prudent is a requirement of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance 
and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 and the statutory guidance that 
accompanies the regulations.  Minimum revenue provision is relevant to the 
control of the Council’s capital expenditure and must be referred to the County 
Council for approval. 
 
The legal position in relation to the recommended level of Council Tax is set out in 
paragraph 3.12 of the Budget Book. 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 

Revenue Budget Change 2017/18 
 
Recommendation 9 – the recommendation is lawful, in accordance with the 
Constitution and within the remit of the County Council. 
 

 

5. Resource Comments: 
 

Council Budget 2018/19 
 
The budget proposals are consistent with the Council’s Financial Strategy. 
 
The robustness of the budget proposals and the adequacy of the reserves held by 
the Council are considered in Section 10 of the appended Budget Book.  This 
concludes that the budget is realistic and that the level of reserves is adequate.  
 
Revenue Budget Change 2017/18 
 
Virements in excess of £0.500m require the approval of full Council.  This report 
allows the approval to be sought. 
 

 
6. Consultation 

 
a)  Has Local Member Been Consulted? 

n/a 
 

b)  Has Executive Councillor Been Consulted?  

Yes 

c)  Scrutiny Comments 

These are set out in the appended Budget Book (APPENDIX D - Budget 
Consultation Feedback) 

 
 

 
 

d)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out? 

No 

e)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

An Impact Analysis relating to the proposed increase in Council Tax has been 
carried out and is contained in the appended Budget Book at APPENDIX C. 
 
Proposed service changes to give effect to the budget will be subject to their own 
policy proofing considerations. 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 19



 

7. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Attached as a separate booklet with the agenda pack - "Council 
Budget 2018/19" - the budget book 

 
 

8. Background Papers 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Report to the 
Executive 20 
December 2017 
"Council Budget 
2018/19" & Report to 
the Executive 6 
February 2018 
"Council Budget 
2018/19" 

Democratic Services 

 
 
 
This report was written by David Forbes, who can be contacted on 01522 553642 
or david.forbes@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

 

Page 20

mailto:david.forbes@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 

 
County Council 

 

Open Report on behalf of Tony McArdle, Chief Executive 

 

Report to: Council 

Date: 23 February 2018 

Subject: Council Business Plan 2018 – 2020 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report presents in Appendix A the outcomes and measures that are 
recommended by the Executive for adoption by the Council as the Council 
Business Plan 2018 - 2020. The Council Business Plan is part of the Budget and 
Policy Framework and must be approved by Council. 
 
 

Recommendation(s): 

Council approve the Council Business Plan 2018 - 2020 in the form attached at 
Appendix A. 
 

 
1. Background 
 
It is proposed to have a 2 year Council Business Plan to mirror a 2 year budget 
covering the period 2018 – 2020. The format and content of the Council Business 
Plan remains largely unchanged from 2017/18 (except of course for the inclusion of 
2018/19 and 2019/20 targets). The draft Council Business Plan is attached in 
Appendix A and the changes to the content are detailed in Appendix B. The 
changes are reflected in the equalities objectives detailed in Appendix C.  The 
equalities objectives have been proposed on the basis that these are the outcomes 
from the Commissioning Strategies and progress will be evidenced through the 
measures in the council business plan.  
 
The targets in the final draft Council Business Plan, that is the outcomes and 
measures from the commissioning strategies are based on performance 
information as at mid-December 2017 and are subject to change once the 2017/18 
out turn is known. Once approved the Council Business Plan may change to reflect 
changes in the wider economy, the nature of demand and the consequences of 
any service changes. A caveat to reflect this has been included in the draft CBP 
2018 – 2020, see Appendix A.  Any change will be in discussion with the Executive 
Councillor and approved by the Executive. 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



 

2. Legal Issues: 
 
Equality Act 2010 

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Council must, in the exercise of its 
functions, have due regard to the need to: 

*           Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under the Act 

*           Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 

*           Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender reassignment; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation 

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to: 

*           Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic 

*           Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it 

*           Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionately low 

The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from 
the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities 

Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to tackle prejudice, and promote 
understanding 

Compliance with the duties in section 149 may involve treating some persons more 
favourably than others 

The duty cannot be delegated and must be discharged by the decision-maker.  To 
discharge the statutory duty the decision-maker must analyse all the relevant 
material with the specific statutory obligations in mind.  If a risk of adverse impact is 
identified consideration must be given to measures to avoid that impact as part of 
the decision making process 

The Report proposes the measures by which the Council will assess its 
performance of its key functions many of which relate to people with a protected 
characteristic including young people, older people and people with a disability.  It 
is the responsibility of each service when it is considering making a change, 
stopping, or starting a new service to make sure equality considerations are taken 
into account and an equality impact analysis completed. 

 

Page 22



 

 

Joint Strategic Needs Analysis (JSNA and the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(JHWS) 

The Council must have regard to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
and the Joint Health & Well Being Strategy (JHWS) in coming to a decision 

The Report proposes the measures by which the Council will assess its 
performance of its key functions many of which relate directly to achievement of 
health and wellbeing objectives.   

 

Crime and Disorder 

Under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council must exercise its 
various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those 
functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour adversely affecting 
the local environment), the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its 
area and re-offending in its area 

 

3. Conclusion
The outcomes and measures in Appendix A are recommended by the Executive 
for adoption as the Council Business Plan 2018 - 2020.  
 

4. Legal Comments: 
 

The decision to approve the Council Business Plan is within the remit of Full 
Council.   
 

 

5. Resource Comments: 
 

The financial resources required to deliver this plan are included in the Council 
budget which will also be considered by Council at its meeting on 23rd February. 
 

 
6. Consultation 

 
a)  Has Local Member Been Consulted? 

n/a 
 

b)  Has Executive Councillor Been Consulted?  

n/a 
 

The Report proposes the measures by which the Council will assess its 
performance of its key functions some of which relate to crime and disorder issues.   

Page 23



 

c)  Scrutiny Comments 

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board met on 25 January 2018 and 
considered a report concerning the Final Draft Council Business Plan 2018 - 
2020. The comments of the Committee were passed on to the Executive 
together with responses from Commissioning Leads and considered by them 
in recommending the Council Business Plan.  

 

 
 

 

d)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out? 

No 

e)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

It is the responsibility of each service when it is considering making a change, 
stopping, or starting a new service to make sure equality considerations and 
equality impact analysis are completed. 

 

 
7. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Council Business Plan 2018 – 2020 

Appendix B Changes to the Council Business Plan  

Appendix C Equalities Objectives 

 
 

8. Background Papers 
 
The following background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 
1972 were used in the preparation of this report. 
 

Document Title Where the Document can be viewed 

Executive Report "Final Draft Council 
Business Plan 2017/18" dated 7 
February 2017 

Democratic Services 

Comments of Scrutiny Committee on 
Final Draft Council Business Plan 
2017/18 

Democratic Services 

 
 
 
This report was written by Jasmine Sodhi who can be contacted on 
jasmine.sodhi@lincolsnhire.gov.uk  or 01522 552124. 

Page 24



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

Communities are Safe and Protected
1. IIlicit alcohol and tobacco seized 

Number of illicit alcohol and tobacco products seized.  Products 
include:  Illicit alcohol and tobacco includes counterfeit, non-duty 
paid, unsafe, incorrectly labelled, and other illicit brands.                     

5000 products Actual 
4511 products

Target 
3000 products

Target to be 
confirmed once 

Q3 2017/18 
performance is 

analysed 

Target to be 
confirmed 

once Q3 
2018/19 

performance 
is analysed

Higher number 
of products is 

better

2. Unsafe and Counterfeit goods removed from 
the market

This measure is a count of the numbers of unsafe goods removed 
from the market in Lincolnshire, reducing the risk of any of these 
products causing harm to the end-user. This includes illicit goods 
(largely counterfeit) but not including alcohol and tobacco. An 
'unsafe good' is any product that does not conform to European 
and/or UK safety standards and regulations or does not meet the 
definition of a safe product in the General Product Safety 
Regulations 2005. There are many types of product that could be 
unsafe and would be the responsibility of Trading Standards and 
this includes electrical items, cosmetics, clothing, furniture and toys. 
These figures are dependent on successful legal process, meaning 
forfeiture or surrendering of the products.                                         

30,000  Actual 
32,863 products

Target
24,000 products 

Target to be 
confirmed once 

Q3 2017/18 
performance is 

analysed

Target to be 
confirmed 

once Q3 
2018/19 

performance 
is analysed

Higher number 
of goods 

removed is 
better

The public are 
protected from 
unsafe and 
dangerous goods 

3. High risk premises inspected by Trading 
Standards

This is a count of the number of premises that are categorised as 
'High risk' that have been inspected by Trading Standards. A 'High 
risk' premises is one that has been categorised as such by the Food 
Standards Agency, DEFRA, and the Better Regulation Delivery 
Office as requiring an annual compliance visit based upon an 
assessment of the risk posed to the public.

266 premesis Actual 
66 premesis

Target 
62 premesis

Target to be 
agreed in Q1 

when 2017-18 
national 

inspection 
requirements 

are agreed

Target to be 
agreed in Q1 

when 2018-
19 national 
inspection 

requirements 
are agreed

Higher number 
of premesis 
inspected is 

better

     107. Antisocial behaviour 
This measure is a count of all Police recorded anti-social behaviour 
incidents. It is a contextual measure to be considered alongside the 
measure of alcohol related anti-social behaviour. It should be noted 
that this measure relates to Police recorded anti-social behaviour 
only and does not cover all anti-social behaviour occurring within 
Lincolnshire, for example, those incidents reported to District 
Councils or Housing providers are not included. 

There is currently 
no active target 

set therefore this 
indicator is 

reported as 
measured.

12,047 incidents This indicator is 
reported as 

measured

This indicator 
is reported as 

measured

Smaller 
number of 

incidents 
reported is 

better.

Protecting the 
public

The purpose of this 
commissioning 
strategy is to create 
an environment that 
enables the people 
of Lincolnshire to 
succeed and 
prosper, to ensure 
the public feel 
protected and 
secure and that 
those that are most 
vulnerable are 
safeguarded. 

Improve public safety 
by the reduction in 
drugs and alcohol 
misuse, focused on 
town centre alcohol 
fuelled violence and 
anti-social behaviour, 
young people and 
drug misuse

5. Alcohol related anti-social behaviour 
incidents

This measure is a count of Police recorded Anti-Social Behaviour 
incidents. An Anti-Social Behaviour incident is classed as alcohol-
related if it fulfils one these criteria:  Where alcohol has been 
identified as contributing to the incident, the incident is classed as 
either ‘street drinking’ or ‘drunken behaviour’ or the caller’s initial 
description of the incident contains the words ‘drunk’, ‘drink’, 
‘alcohol’, ‘intoxicated’, or ‘urinate’.

Decrease by 5% 
on 2016/17 year 

end outturn 
(2710 incidents)

Actual 
1,677 incidents

Target 
1,597 incidents

Decrease by 5% 
on 2017/18 year 

end outturn 

TBC once 
2018/19 year 
end outturn is 

confirmed

Lower number 
of incidents is 

better

Alcohol related anti-
social behaviour is 10% 
lower in Q2 than in Q2 
2016/2017. Alcohol 
related anti-social 
behaviour continues to 
fall and remains the 
lowest this quarter than it 
has been in Quarter 2 for 
the past six years. 
Alcohol related crime 
occurring at night has 
decreased particularly. 

P
age 25



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

Although the target has 
not been achieved this 
quarter, the figure is 
closer to the target than 
in Q1 2017-18

6. Alcohol related violent crime incidents
This measure is a count of all Home Office notifiable violence 
against the person offences (excluding 'no crimes') where alcohol is 
identified as contributing to the incident. Violence against the person 
offences includes all assaults apart from sexual offences.

Decrease by 5% 
on 2016/17 year 

end outturn 
(1397 incidents)

Actual 
926 incidents

Target 
695 incidents 

Decrease by 5% 
on 2017/18 year 

end outturn 

TBC once 
2018/19 year 
end outturn is 

confirmed

Lower number 
of incidents is 

better

Alcohol related violence 
is up 38% compared to 
Q2 2016/2017 and is 
higher than last quarter. 
Overall, all types of 
alcohol related crime are 
continuing an upwards 
trend with alcohol related 
violence accounting for 
the largest proportion. An 
increase in overall violent 
crime is currently being 
experienced nationally.

7. Reported incidents of domestic abuse
This measure is a count of all incidents reported to the Police where 
a Domestic Abuse Stalking and Harassment (DASH) risk 
assessment was completed. These risk assessments are performed 
in all incidents that meet the government's definition of domestic 
abuse.

Increase by 3% 
on 2016/17 year 

end outturn
(9824 incidents)

Actual
 4850 reported 

incidents

Target 
5242 reported 

incidents

Increase by 2% 
on 2017/18 year 

end outturn

TBC once 
2018/19 year 
end outturn is 

confirmed

Higher number 
of reported 
incidents is 

better

Domestic abuse 
incidents reported to the 
police are 8% lower in 
Quarter 2 than in Q2 
2016/2017. In terms of 
locality, all districts 
except for Boston and 
North Kesteven have 
seen a decrease in 
reports compared to the 
same quarter last year. 

8. Domestic homicides
A Domestic Homicide is identified by the Police and refers to when 
someone has been killed as a result of domestic violence.

It is not 
appropriate to set 
a target for this 
measure

1 incident(s) It is not appropriate to set a 
target for this measure

Lower is better

Increase public 
confidence in how 
we tackle domestic 
abuse

9. Repeat referrals of Domestic Abuse to 
MARAC 

The MARAC (Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference) is a 
meeting where key agencies formulate action plans to help protect 
victims of domestic abuse who are at a high risk of murder or 
serious harm. Local agencies refer high risk victims to MARAC 
following completion of a Domestic Abuse Stalking and Harassment 
(DASH) risk assessment. Following being heard at MARAC, if within 
12 months there is a further serious incident reported to the police or 
a disclosure received by any of the agencies the victim is to be 

It is not 
appropriate to set 
a target for this 
measure

23.5% 
(October 2016 – 

September 2017)

It is not appropriate to set a 
target for this measure

 

Maintain rate 
of  repeat 

referrals

P
age 26



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

referred back to the MARAC as a 'repeat'. This measure is a count 
of repeat referrals to MARAC expressed as a percentage of the total 
MARAC referrals on a rolling 12 month basis. Although this measure 
is used as a proxy for repeat victims of domestic abuse, it does not 
provide a full or accurate picture of repeat victimisation. MARAC 
covers high risk domestic abuse victims who account for less than 
8% of all reported incidents of domestic abuse. This disproportion 
means that there are likely higher numbers of repeat victims than 
can be detected in the MARAC data.

11.People killed and seriously injured in road 
traffic collisions

Data is reported by calendar year, with 3 month (1 quarter lag) 

It is not 
appropriate to set 
a target for this 
measure

Actual 
123 casualties

April – June 2017

It is not appropriate to set a 
target for this measure

Lower is better  Reduce the number 
of people killed and 
seriously injured on 
Lincolnshire's roads 

12. Children killed or seriously injured in road 
traffic collisions

Data is reported by calendar year, with 3 month (1 quarter) lag

It is not 
appropriate to set 
a target for this 
measure

Actual 
7 casualties

April – June 2017

It is not appropriate to set a 
target for this measure

Lower is better

13. Satisfaction with responses to crime and 
anti-social behaviour

This measure helps demonstrate our achievement against Section 
17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 "Duty to consider crime and 
disorder implications" which sets out the requirement for Local 
Authorities to work in partnership with relevant agencies " …to do all 
that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in its area". 
Satisfaction that the Police and Local Council are dealing with anti-
social behaviour and crime issues is a measure of successful multi-
agency response in Lincolnshire.
(Reported annually in Q1)

Exceed the 
national result for 

2016/17
(61.3%)

Actual
59.9% 

satisfaction
2016/2017

Target
 62% satisfaction 

2016/2017

Data is reported 
with a 3month (1 

Quarter lag) so 
2017/18 data will 

be reported in Q1 
2018/19.

Exceed the 
national result 

for 2017/18
(Available in Q1 

2018/19)

Exceed the 
national 

result for 
2018/19

(Available in 
Q1 2019/20)

Higher 
percentage of 
satisfaction is 

better

Satisfaction that police 
and local council are 
working in partnership to 
deal with community 
safety issues in 
Lincolnshire has 
increased by 4.3 
percentage points in 
2016/17 compared  to 
2015/16 results. Previous 
year's results have 
shown a downward trend 
in satisfaction for 
Lincolnshire however this 
now appears to be 
improving.      

Reduce adult 
reoffending

14. Adults Reoffending
This is a measure of adult reoffending rates over a 12 month rolling 
period. Offenders who are formally informed by Lincolnshire Police 
that they will be recorded as being responsible for committing a 
crime over a 3 month period are included in the numerator. The 
denominator is then the number of those offenders who commit 
another offence in Lincolnshire during a 12 month follow-up period 
that leads to the offender being informed by the police that they will 
be recorded as being responsible for the crime. The data is reported 
cumulatively. This measurement is local to Lincolnshire, it does not 
replace the existing or forthcoming MOJ Reoffending Rate but is 
meant to compliment and allow more timely and practical analysis. 

Decrease by 2% 
on 2016/17 year 

end outturn 
(27.5%)

Actual 
29.3% 

April – June 2017

Target 
31.2%

April – June 2017 

Decrease by 2% 
on 2017/18 year 

end outturn

TBC once 
2018/19 year 
end outturn is 

confirmed

Lower 
percentage of 

adults 
reoffending is 

better

P
age 27



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

The methodology is intended to mirror the format of the revised MOJ 
Reoffending Rate which will be used nationally from October 2017 
however the final figures will not be the same due to slightly different 
cohort compositions.

15. Juvenile first time offenders
The First Time Entrant (FTE) measure is a rate per 100,000 of 10-
17 population in Lincolnshire. However, for this purpose we are 
reporting the actual number of young people, rather than the rate. A 
lower number is a sign of good performance.
The target is set by Lincolnshire County Council, the Youth Justice 
Board monitor and challenge progress.
(Data is reported with a 6 month lag.)

203

Target based on 
Midlands 

Regional Average 
for the period July 

2016-June 2017

Actual 
283

April 2016 – 
March 2017

Target 
203

 April 2016 – 
March 2017

255 

(10% decrease 
on April 2016-

March 2017 
performance. 

Target no longer 
based on 
Midlands 
Regional 

Average.)

230

(10% 
reduction on 

2018/19 
target) 

Lower number 
of offenders is 

better
  

Reduce the number 
of young people 
committing a crime

125. Juvenile re-offending
The Ministry of Justice has changed the methodology for measuring 
reoffending. There has been a move to a three month cohort rather 
than a 12 month cohort. The cohort will still be tracked over 12 
months. Changing from 12 month cohorts to the 3 month cohorts 
results in a greater proportion of prolific offenders and hence higher 
reoffending rates, though both measures show similar trends over 
time at a national level.

New measure to 
the CBP 2018-

2020

Actual
38.4%

Cohort – 146
Reoffenders – 

46
(July 2015  – 

September 2015)

To be in line 
with, or less 

than the 
Midlands 
Regional 

Average of 
39.8%

(January 2015– 
March 2015)

To be in line 
with, or less 

than the 
Midlands 
Regional 
Average 
(January 

2016-March 
2016) not yet 

published

Lower 
percentage is 

better

n/a as new measure 
in CBP 2018-2020

19. Primary fires
Primary fires are fires in buildings, vehicles and outdoor structures, 
fires including casualties or rescues, or fires attended by five or 
more fire engines. 

133.47 per 
100,000 

population

983 fires 

Actual 
80.84 per 

100,000 
population

601 fires

Target
 73.13  per 

100,000 
population

539 fires 

135.52 per 
100,000 

population

1,007 fires 

132.97 per 
100,000 

population

988 fires

Lower is better We are currently behind 
target having seen a 7% 
increase (41 incidents) 
over the 6 month period 
compared with last year. 
The increase can be 
attributed mainly to 
dwelling fires and vehicle 
fires. The increase seen 
at Q2 is less significant 
than that at Q1 and this 
has had the effect of 
bringing the measure 
closer to target.

Reduce fires and 
their consequences

20. Fire fatalities in primary fires
This measure counts the number of fatalities from primary fires 
where the Fire Service attended (per 100,000 population).

It is not 
appropriate to set 
a target for this 
measure

Actual 
0.40 per 100,000 

population

3 fatalities

It is not appropriate to set a 
target for this measure

Lower is better

P
age 28



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

21. Deliberate primary fires
This measure counts the number of incidents of fires involving 
property; and/or casualties, fatalities or rescues; and/or five or more 
pumping appliances where the Fire Service attended & determined 
that the cause of the fire was deliberate/malicious intent (per 10,000 
population).

3.27 per 10,000 
population

243 fires

Actual 
1.96 per 10,000 

population

146 fires

Target 
 1.64 per 10,000 

population
121 fires  

3.08 per 10,000 
population

229 fires

3.08 per 
10,000 

population

229 fires

Lower is better We are currently behind 
target having seen an 
increase of 35 deliberate 
primary fires compared to 
Q2 last year. This is 
mainly due to an 
increase in deliberate 
vehicle fires; however the 
increase seen at Q2 is 
less significant than that 
at Q1and this has had 
the effect of bringing the 
measure closer to target. 

22. Deliberate secondary fires
This measure counts the number of incidents of fires:- not involving 
property; were not chimney fires in buildings; did not involve 
casualties, fatalities or rescues; were attended by four or fewer 
pumping appliances where the Fire Service attended and 
determined that the cause of the fire was deliberate/malicious intent 
(per 10,000 population).

3.35 per 10,000 
population

247 fires

Actual 
 2.52 per 10,000 

population

187 fires

 Target 
  2.19 per 10,000 

population
161 fires

3.27 per 10,000 
population

243 fires

3.27 per 
10,000 

population

243 fires

Lower is better We are currently behind 
target having seen a 26% 
increase (39 incidents) in 
deliberate secondary 
fires compared to this 
time last year. The 
increase can be 
attributed mainly to 
deliberate fires involving 
refuse/refuse containers. 
The increase seen at Q2 
is less significant than 
that at Q1 and this has 
had the effect of bringing 
the measure closer to 
target.

Children are safe 
and healthy

The purpose of this 
commissioning 
strategy is that 
children growing up 
in Lincolnshire are 
safe and healthy.
We think this can 
be achieved by 
children growing up 
in homes where 
they feel safe and 
are supported to 
make decisions to 

Children are safe 
and healthy 

23. Looked after children
This measure counts the number of looked after children per 10,000 
population aged under 18. This measure is reported taking a 
snapshot in time.

680 children

48 per 10,000 
population under 

18
(confirmation of 

'number of 
children' required 

due to revised 
target from Q1)

Actual 
as at 30th 

September 2017 
690 children

47.9 per 10,000 
population under 

18

Target  
as at 30th 

September 2017
680 children

48 per 10,000 
population under 

18

680 children

48 per 10,000 
population 

under 18

680 children

48 per 
10,000 

population 
under 18

Lower number 
of looked after 

children is 
better

P
age 29



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

24. Children who are subject to a child 
protection plan

A child protection plan is a plan drawn up by the local authority. It 
sets out how the child can be kept safe, how things can be made 
better for the family and what support they will need. This measure 
is reported taking a snapshot in time.

340 children 

24 per 10,000 
population under 

18

Actual 
as at 30th 

September 2017
362 children

25.5 per 10,000 
population under 

18

Target 
 as at 30th 

September 2017
340 children

24 per 10,000 
population under 

18 

340 children 

24 per 10,000 
population 

under 18

340 children 

24 per 
10,000 

population 
under 18

Lower is better

25. Average time taken to move a child from 
care to an adoptive family

This measure counts the average number of days between the child 
entering care and moving in with their adoptive family. This measure 
is reported as a three year rolling average.

430 days Actual
average July 2017 

– Sept 2017
374 days

Target 
average July 2017 

– Sept 2017
430 days

400 days 400 days Lower number 
of days is 

better

live a healthier life.
 

26. Average time taken to match a child to an 
adoptive family

This measure counts the average number of days between the local 
authority receiving the court order to place a child and the local 
authority deciding on a match to an adoptive family. This measure is 
reported as a three year rolling average.

200 days Actual
average July 

2017 – Sept 2017
167 days

Target 
average July 

2017 – Sep 2017
200 days

175 days 175 days Lower number 
of days is 

better

28. Safeguarding cases supported by an 
advocate

This measure identifies the proportion of concluded safeguarding 
enquiries, where the person at risk lacks capacity and support was 
provided by an advocate, family or friend.

100% Actual 
100%

Target
100%

100% 100% Higher 
percentage is 

better

Safeguarding 
adults

The purpose of this 
commissioning 
strategy is that 
vulnerable adults' 
rights are protected 
so that everyone 
can live safely and 

Safeguarding adults 
whose 
circumstances make 
them vulnerable, 
protecting them from 
avoidable harm and 
acting in their best 
interests where they 
lack capacity

114. Percentage of completed safeguarding n/a Actual 31% 31% Lower n/a

P
age 30



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

enquiries where risk was identified, where 
the 'Source of Risk' is a service provider.

Change to existing measure definition, hence 'New', to monitor the 
source of risk for S42 enquiries where a risk has been identified.  
This enables benchmarking from the Safeguarding Collection with 
other authorities.

29% percentage is 
better

115. Percentage of outstanding Deprivation 
of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) applications 
completed

A national issue post 'Cheshire West' judgement, which impacted all 
authorities who received a significant increase in DOLS applications.

New measure to 
the CBP 2018-

2020

950 applications 750 applications 500 
applications

Lower number 
of applications 

is better
n/a as New measure 

to the CBP 2018-
2020

free from abuse 
and neglect.  

Making 
safeguarding 
personal

116. Percentage of concluded enquiries 
where the desired outcomes were fully or 
partially achieved

New measure to track the progress on Making Safeguarding 
Personal (MSP).  This will be derived from the new mandatory 
reporting table in the Safeguarding Adults Collection (SAC).  Targets 
are based on incomplete voluntary submissions from 16/17 using 
the comparator group average.

New measure to 
the CBP 2018-

2020

Actual 95%
2016/17

95% 95% Higher 
percentage is 

better
n/a New measure to 
the CBP 2018-2020

Health and Wellbeing is improved
31. Percentage of alcohol users that left drug 

treatment successfully who do not re-
present to treatment within 6 months 

This measures the percentage of alcohol users that leave drug 
treatment successfully. Individuals achieving this outcome 
demonstrate a significant improvement in health and well-being in 
terms of: - increased longevity; reduced alcohol related illnesses 
and hospital admissions; improved parenting skills; and improved 
psychological health. It will also reduce the harms to others caused 
by dependent drinking.
 
Alongside this, it aligns with the ambition of both public health and 
the Government's strategy of increasing the number of individuals 
recovering from addiction and also aligns well with the outcome of 
reducing re-offending rates, given that offending behaviour is often 
closely linked to dependent alcohol use.

40% (as of Q2 
2016/17 due to 

revised definition 
of measure)

Actual
34.9%

Apr – June 2017

Target 
40%

Apr – June 2017

40% 40% Higher 
percentage is 

better

Following the new 
contracts commencing in 

October 2016 it was 
anticipated that 

performance would dip, 
this has been realised 

with a reduction in 
outcomes to 34.9% 

compared with a target of 
40%. Local data now 

shows performance 
starting to improve but 

this has yet to be 
reflected in the verified 

data from the 
Department of Health. 

People are 
supported to live 
healthier lifestyles

111. People successfully supported to quit 
smoking

Supports a number of areas of the JSNA and aligns to the PHOF 
which measures a number of population level outcomes regarding 
smoking. Target is aligned to the KPI within the contract which is 
considerably higher than baseline performance level.

2,300
(2017/18 year 

end projection)

Actual
2,300

2016/2017 

(Not previously 
reported in CBP)

3,200 3,200 Higher number 
is better

n/a as new measure 
to CBP 2018-2020

Wellbeing
The purpose of this 
commissioning 
strategy is to 
improve the health 
and wellbeing of 
people in 
Lincolnshire.  We 
think this can be 
best achieved when 
people are 
supported to be 
independent, make 
healthier choices 
and live healthier 
lives.
  

 

Peoples' health and 33. People aged 40 to 74 offered and 55% Actual 55% 55% Higher 

P
age 31



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

received an NHS health check
Cumulative percentage of eligible population aged 40-74 offered an 
NHS health check who received an NHS health check between 
2013/14 to 2017/18)
Currently being recommissioned to be in place for April 2018.

April – June 2016
59.9%

114,469 people

Target
 April – June 

2016 
55%

105,200 people

percentage is 
better

wellbeing is 
improved  

34. Chlamydia diagnoses (per 100,000 15-24 
year olds)

Crude rate of chlamydia diagnoses per 100,000 young adults aged 
15-24 based on their area of residence.
This measure is reported with a 6 month (2 Q lag)

2,045
(for data relating 

to April 2017 -  
March 18)

Actual
Jan – Mar 2017 

1869

Target
Jan – March 2017 

2045

2,045
(for data relating 

to April 2018 – 
Mar 2019) 

2,045
(for data 

relating to 
April 2019 – 

Mar 2020)

Higher number 
of diagnoses is 

better

Service Credits are now in 
place from June 2017 due 
to continuing non 
achievement of the 
chlamydia target. The 
positivity rate remains high 
at 8.8% (target 8 percent) 
ranked Lincolnshire 1st out 
of 9 Local Authorities. The 
Public Health England 
Regional Advisor for 
Sexual Health has advised 
that the focus should be on 
the positivity rate as the 
main quality indicator. 
Lincolnshire Integrated 
Sexual Health Services 
have now set targets for 
their sub-contracted 
outreach team The 
Terrence Higgins Trust 
and are renewing 
relationships with their 
contracted General 
Practitioner's and 
Pharmacies to improve the 
offer and promote 
community based testing 
and treatment services.

Work with others to 
promote community 
wellbeing  

109. Number of frontline staff and volunteers 
trained in Making Every Contact Count 
(MECC)

Whilst not a PHOF indicator this meets needs identified in the JSNA. 
Proposed descriptor change to reflect the wider workforce to which 
the programme is being rolled out.

800
(2017/18 year 
end projection)

n/a as there is a 
revised definition 
for this measure 
in 2018/2019

1000 1000 Higher number 
is better

n/a as not previously 
reported in  CBP 

P
age 32



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

110. Percentage of people supported by the 
Wellbeing Service to improve their outcomes

Supports a number of areas of the JSNA and the Council to meet 
its Care Act responsibilities regarding prevention. Proposed 
measure is a change to align to the KPI in the newly commissioned 
Wellbeing Service. New target to be agreed in October 2018.

89%
(2017/18 year 

end projection)

Actual
88%

2016/2017 

(Not previously 
reported in CBP)

New target to be 
agreed in 

October 2018

TBC once 
2018/2019 

outturn is 
known

Higher number 
is better

n/a as not previously 
reported in  CBP

112. Percentage of people accessing 
housing-related support services that are 
successfully 'supported to access and 
maintain their settled accommodation'.

Supports the Council to meet its Care Act responsibilities regarding 
prevention and also supports wider PHOF outcomes regarding 
housing. The target is aligned to the KPI in the contract.

93%
(2017/18 year 

end projection)

Actual
90%

2016/17

(not previously 
reported in CBP)

90% 90% Higher 
percentage is 

better n/a as not previously 
reported in  CBP

People are able to 
live life to the full and 
maximise their 
independence

113. Percentage of emergency and urgent 
deliveries and collections completed on time 
within Integrated Community Equipment 
Services

This is a core commissioned service in the Community Wellbeing 
Commissioning Strategy and supports the Council to meet its Care 
Act responsibilities. The target is aligned to the KPI in the contract.

99%
(2017/18 year 

end projection)

Actual
99%

2016/17

(not previously 
reported in CBP)

98% 98% Higher 
percentage is 

better n/a as not previously 
reported in  CBP

35. Contact with the heritage service either in 
person, on the phone, by email or via the 
website 

Contact with the heritage service either in person, on the 
phone, by email or via the website.

4,800,000 
contacts

Actual 
3,148,064 

Target 
2,648,832

4,800,000 
contacts 

(subject to 
changes due to 

change in 
service.) 

To be 
determined 

when impacts 
of service 

changes are 
known.

Higher number 
is better

36. Number of visits to Core Libraries and 
Mobile Library services    

Number of physical visits to: Boston; Lincoln; Stamford; 
Grantham; Gainsborough; Mablethorpe; Skegness; 
Sleaford; Spalding and Louth libraries which are open from 
between 45 to 58 hours per week and Bourne; Horncastle; 
Market Rasen; Woodhall Spa; Long Sutton libraries which 
are open from between 18 to 45 hours per week. 
A visit is a physical visit by an individual to a library 
premise as per the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidance.

1,594,838 visits Actual
826,953

Target
795,590

1,665,481 visits 1,723,919 
visits

Higher number 
of visits is 

better

Community 
resilience and 
assets

The purpose of this 
commissioning 
strategy is for 
communities In 
Lincolnshire to be 
resilient. We think 
this can be best 
achieved when 
people and 
communities have 
the information they 
need to come 
together, solve the 
problems they face 
and build the 
county they want.

Enable and 
encourage people 
to
participate in 
Lincolnshire's
culture

37.       Number of visits to library website
The definition of a visit, as per the Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA), is defined as a 
session of activity/series of one or more page impressions, 
served to one User to the library website (or relevant 
library-service-related directories of the authority website 
as defined by the authority).

390,873 visits Actual
219,767

Target
196,413

405,086 visits to 
website

418,083 visits Higher number 
of visits is 

better

P
age 33



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

38. Number of hours of community use 
This measures the number of community spaces booked in 
libraries; the number of activities offered in libraries and the 
number of people attending activities and scheduled events for 
Tier 1 and Tier 2 libraries and Community Hubs. 

1779.80 hours 3108.5 hours 1844.52 hours 
(target aligned 

to GLL contract)

1894.44 
hours

(target 
aligned to 

GLL contract)          

Higher number 
of hours is 

better

39.  Voluntary and community 
groups/organisations actively supported 
in Lincolnshire

A Non-governmental organisation refers to civil society 
organisations (i.e. voluntary organisations and community 
led organisations).

800
groups/

organisations

Actual 
584

groups/
organisations

Target
 400

groups/ 
organisations

800 groups/
organisations 

TBC once 
2018/19 

outturn is 
known

Higher number 
of groups/

organisations  
is better

Communities and 
residents are 
supported to be 
involved in local 
decision making and 
have their views 
taken into account

105. People supported who have 
accessed volunteer opportunities 
through Lincolnshire County Council 
supported projects
This measure aims to track the number of people 
supported to access volunteer opportunities through 
Lincolnshire County Council supported projects.

1,400 people 
supported

Actual
1,093

people supported

Target
700

people supported

1,400 people 
supported

TBC once 
2018/19 

outturn is 
known

 Higher 
number of 

people 
supported is 

better

Make a positive 
difference for our 
communities

40. We want to make a positive difference for 
our communities. When we review or 
introduce a new policy or activity, 
commission, begin a new project, 
decommission or help communities to do 
things for themselves, we will always 
assess the impact on people with 
protected characteristics. This analysis 
helps us to make informed decisions.

This is an activity and progress will be published on LCC connects 
as part of publishing our equalities objectives such as our 
community engagement strategy and volunteer strategy

N/A as activities n/a n/a n/a n/a

n/a as activities

Readiness for 
adult life

The purpose of this 
commissioning 
strategy is for all 
young people to be 
prepared and ready 

Young people are 
supported to reach 
their potential

42. Achievement gap between disadvantaged 
pupils and their peers at key Stage 4

Disadvantaged pupils that achieve at least 5+ A*- C GCSEs 
including English and Maths compared to all the other pupils.
Disadvantaged pupils are defined as Looked After Children and 
children eligible for free school meals. Results are reported in 
arrears so for example, Summer 2016 results are validated and 
reported in Q4 2017.
(Reported annually in Q4)

4 percentage 
points below

the national all 
authorities 

benchmark.
National 

Benchmarking 
data is expected 

Actual 
Summer 2016 

results 
32%

Target 
Summer 2015 

results

26% 24% Smaller 
percentage is 

better

Although not achieved, 
performance in 2016/17 
has improved compared 
with the previous year.  
Children's Services in 
partnership with the 
Lincolnshire Learning 
Partnership have agreed 
a range of actions to 
support schools to 

P
age 34



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

January 2018. 
Target will be 

confirmed once 
figures have been 

received.

 28%

(Summer 2016 
results will be 
validated and 

reported in Q4)

reduce the achievement 
gap.

45. 16-17 year old Looked After Children 
participating in Learning

This measures young people recorded as being Looked After 
Children at the end of the reporting period and will not take into 
consideration the length of time that they have been in local 
authority care.
This measure is reported as a snap shot in time.

87% Actual 
as at 30th 

September 2016
61.07%

Target 
as at 30th 

September 2016 
70%

88% 89% Higher 
percentage is 

better

The Virtual School Team 
have identified all of 
those 16-17 year olds not 
participating in learning 
and have been 
successful in finding 
appropriate placements 
for the majority of 
students in the period 
September to October 
2017. This has brought 
performance within the 
tolerance range for this 
indicator as of 23rd 
October 2017, which 
although outside of Q 2 
reporting parameters, 
shows a positive 
increase.

for adult life. 

46. Care Leavers in Suitable Accommodation
A care leaver is a young person who reaches the age of 18 who had 
been in local authority care.
This measure is reported as a snap shot in time.

92% Actual 
as at 30th 

September 2016
92.6%

Target 
as at 30th 

September 2016 
92%

92% 92% Higher 
percentage is 

better

Readiness for 
school

The purpose of this 
commissioning 
strategy is for all 
children to get the 
best possible start 
in life so that they 
are ready to learn 
when they start 
school.  

There is a secure 
foundation for all 
children to progress 
through school and 
life   

47. Achievement at a good level of 
development in the Early Years 
Foundation Stage 

Children achieving at least the expected level in the Early Learning 
Goals in the prime areas of learning and in specific areas of literacy 
and maths.
(Reported annually in Q4.)

1% point above 
the national all 

authorities 
benchmark.

National 
Benchmarking 

data is expected 
January 2018. 
Target will be 

confirmed once 
figures have been 

received.
 

Actual 
2016/2017 

70.5%

Target 
2016/2017

70%

71% 72% Higher 
percentage is 

better

P
age 35



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

48. Achievement gap between disadvantaged 
pupils and their peers at Foundation 
stage 
Achievement gap between the free school meals 
eligible pupils and their peers at Foundation stage' 
reports all disadvantaged pupils. This measure was 
previously titled 'Achievement gap between the lowest 
20% of pupils and their peers at Foundation Stage'. 
(Reported annually in Q4)

2% points above 
the national all 

authorities 
benchmark.

National 
Benchmarking 

data is expected 
January 2018. 
Target will be 

confirmed once 
figures have been 

received.

Not applicable as
new definition of 

the measure to 
be reported in Q4 

2017/18

19% 18% Lower 
percentage is 

better

n/a as
new definition of the 

measure to be 
reported in Q4 

2017/18

49. Adults with learning disabilities who live 
in their own home or with family

The measure shows the proportion of all adults with a learning 
disability who are known to the council, who are recorded as living in 
their own home or with their family.

76% Actual 
78%

Target 
76%

79% 80% Higher 
percentage is 

better

51. Adults who receive a direct payment 
(Learning Disability or Mental Health)

Proportion of adults supported in the community who receive a 
direct payment (for adults receiving learning disability or mental 
health services provided or commissioned by LCC). Is measure 
is reported as a snapshot in time.

50% Actual 
47.0%

Target
48.8%

48% 49% Higher 
percentage is 

better

Enhanced quality of 
life and care for 
people with learning 
disability, autism and 
or mental illness

117. Percentage of adults aged 18-64 with a 
mental health problem living independently

LPFT measure, which is a subset of the national ASCOF measure 
just looking at social care service recipients.  It is expected to be 
reported from Q1 2018/19. Targets based on the setting of current 
clients (residential/community).

n/a as new 
measure in CBP 

2018-2020

n/a 75% 75% Higher 
percentage is 

better
n/a as not previously 

reported in  CBP

Specialist Adult 
Services

People have a 
positive experience 
of care

118. Percentage of adults with a learning 
disability in receipt of long term support for 
12 months or more who have been reviewed 
in the period

This measure was combined previously, with two new measures 
created to monitor (internal) learning disability and (S75 
commissioned) LPFT mental health activity separately.  

95% Actual
44%

Target
47.5%

95% 95% Higher 
percentage is 

better
n/a as not previously 

reported in  CBP

P
age 36



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

119. Percentage of adults aged 18-64 with a 
mental health need in receipt of long term 
support for 12 months or more who have 
been reviewed in the period

This measure was combined previously, with two new measures 
created to monitor (internal) learning disability and (S75 
commissioned) LPFT mental health activity separately.  

95% Actual
40%

Target
47.5%

95% 95% Higher 
percentage is 

better
n/a as new measure 
for CBP 2018-2020

56. Carers included or consulted in 
discussions about the person they care 
for

This measures responses to the question in the Carers Survey "In 
the last 12 months, do you feel you have been involved or consulted 
as much as you wanted to be, in discussions about the support or 
services provided to the person you care for?"
(Statutory Survey every 2 years; LCC will be conducting the survey 
every year. Reported in Q4.)

71.4%
Target 

Apr 16 –Mar 17

Actual 
Apr 16 –Mar 17

64.4%

Target 
Apr 16 –Mar 17

71.4%

71%
Target Apr 18-

Mar 19

71%
Target Apr 19 

-Mar 20

Higher is 
better

The Care Act and the 
Lincolnshire Carers 
service champion  'Whole 
Family Approaches' and 
it therefore remains an 
aspiration for the 
Lincolnshire Health and 
Care community that 
these figures should 
improve with the next 
survey in 2018/19.

59. Carers supported in the last 12 months 
per 100,000 

The total number of carers supported over the last 12 months with 
direct and indirect care (personal budgets, commissioned services, 
information and advice to the carer and respite for the person cared 
for).  

1,440 per 
100,000

8,500 carers

Actual
1,417 per 

100,000
8,431 carers

Target
1,440 per

100,000
8,500 carers

1,540 per 
100,000

9,180 carers

1,630 per 
100,000

9,680 

Higher amount 
of carers 

supported is 
better

120. Percentage of carers who reported that 
they had as much social contact as they 
would like
Identified from the last survey as significantly impacting on 
a carers' quality of life.  Linked to social isolation project in 
Community Wellbeing and with employment project with 
the Lincolnshire carers Service. Target set above 
Lincolnshire's CIPFA comparator group average.

n/a as new 
measure in CBP 

2018-2020

Actual
32%

2016/2017

35% 35% Higher 
percentage is 

better n/a as new measure 
for CBP 2018-2020

Carers

The purpose of this 
commissioning 
strategy is to help 
carers build 
resilience in their 
caring role and to 
prevent young 
carers from taking 
on inappropriate 
caring roles, 
protecting them 
from harm.  Carers 
should have 
appropriate access 
to support which 
enables them to 
improve their 
quality of life and 
help prevent crisis.

Carers feel valued 
and respected and 
able to maintain their 
caring roles

121. Percentage of eligible carers (caring for 
adults) who have received a review of their 
needs in the period
New measure to ensure LCC's responsibilities under the 
Care Act are met to review carers who meet the national 
threshold for support.

n/a as new 
measure in CBP 

2018-2020

Actual
70%

2016/17

85% 85% Higher 
percentage is 

better n/a as new measure 
in CBP 2018-2020

.

P
age 37



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

                  63. Adults who receive a direct payment 
(Adult Frailty and Long Term Conditions)
This measure reflects the proportion of all adults supported in the 
community under this strategy who receive a direct payment. (This 
is a revised definition for 2017/2018 and excludes Learning 
Disability and Mental Health). Performance is reported as a snap 
shot in time. 

28% Actual 
as at 30th Sept 

2016 
36%

Target 
as at 30th 

September 2016
28%

40% 40% Higher 
percentage is 

better

Enhance the quality 
of life for people with 
care and support 
needs

123. Percentage of people who report that 
services help them to have control over their 
daily life
(Survey measure)

Alternative measure from the annual client survey that focuses 
on whether the services and support help people to have 
control - over which we have influence - rather than reporting on 
a general feeling of control.

n/a as new 
measure in CBP 

2018-2020

Actual
90%

2016/17

95% 95% Higher 
percentage is 

better
n/a as new measure 
in CBP 2018-2020

60. Permanent admissions to residential and 
nursing care homes aged 65+

The number of admissions of older people to residential and nursing 
care homes relative to the population size (65+). This is a national 
Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework measure 2Aii

1,129 admissions
688 per 100,000

Actual 
388 admissions

Target 
565

1,150 
admissions

1,150 
admissions

Lower number 
of admissions 

is better

122. Percentage of requests for support for 
new clients , aged 65 or over, where the 
outcome was long term support services

Replaces the previous requests measures which looked at the 
% leading to info & advice.  This did not reflect the extent of the 
preventative work in Adult care and Community Wellbeing 
which ultimately aims to reduce the number of new clients 
requiring long term funded care.

n/a as new 
measure in CBP 

2018-2020

Actual
7%

2016/17

7% 7% Lower 
percentage is 

better

n/a as new measure 
in CBP 2018-2020

Adult frailty and 
long term 
conditions 
The purpose of this 
commissioning 
strategy is 
to outline the local 
authority's 
intentions in Adult 
Care Frailty and 
Long Term 
Conditions across 
Lincolnshire. The 
key commissioning 
intentions focus on 
supporting people 
to live in their own 
homes for as long 
as
they wish by 
developing high 
quality, 
personalised 
services that are 
flexible, responsive 
and give people 
choice and control 
over how their care 
and support is 
provided. 

Delay and reduce the 
need for care and 
support

124. Percentage of completed episodes of 
Reablement where the outcome was either 
no ongoing support or support of a lower 
level

New measure to monitor the effectiveness of the Reablement 
service, which is a key preventative activity for delaying or reducing 
need for longer term support services.

n/a as new 
measure in CBP 

2018-2020

Actual
98%

2016/17

95% 95% Higher 
percentage is 

better
n/a as new measure 
in CBP 2018-2020

P
age 38



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

Ensure that people 
have a positive 
experience of care 
and support

65. People in receipt of long term support 
who have been reviewed

Lincolnshire County Council has a statutory duty to assess people 
with an eligible need and once the person has a support plan there 
is a duty to reassess their needs annually. This measure ensures 
people currently in receipt of long term support or in a residential / 
nursing placement are reassessed annually.

89% Actual 
44%

Target 
44.5%

90% 90% Higher 
percentage is 

better

Businesses are supported to grow
67. Permanent exclusions 

This measures the number of permanent term exclusions in all 
schools (primary, secondary, special schools, academies and 
maintained schools), divided by the school population and is 
measured annually by academic year. This measure is reported 
with a 2 year lag. This means data for the academic year 
(September 2015- July 2016) is reported in 2017/18. 

Academic  year 
September 2015– 

July 2016
0.14% 

(this equates to 
around 140 

exclusions. This 
is expressed as 

exclusions rather 
than children as a 

child could have 
more than one 

exclusion)

Academic year 
September 2014-

July 2015 
(reported in Q4 

2016/17)
0.18%

which equates to 
around 180 

children.

Academic  year 
September 

2016– July 2017 
0.12% 

(this equates to 
around 120 

exclusions. This 
is expressed as 

exclusions 
rather than 

children as a 
child could have 

more than one 
exclusion)

Academic  
year 

September 
2017– July 

2018 
0.10% 

(this equates 
to around 

100 
exclusions. 

This is 
expressed as 

exclusions 
rather than 

children as a 
child could 
have more 

than one 
exclusion)

Lower 
percentage is 

better

The Inclusive 
Lincolnshire Strategy 
only became available to 
schools in Sept 2016 in 
its complete form – 
before then, there was no 
Behaviour Outreach 
Support Service (BOSS) 
and no pre-exclusion 
places available in the 
Pupil Referral Unit. It is 
reasonable to expect 
progress to be made in 
academic year Sept 16-
Jul 17, which will be 
reported in March 2019. 
Secondary schools 
represent the ongoing 
challenge going forward.

Learn and achieve Improve educational 
attainment for all 
pupil

                  104. Percentage of pupils achieving the 
threshold in English and mathematics at Key Stage 4
This is the first year this new national measure is being introduced 
and will allow reporting of performance against the national 
threshold.
(Reported annually in Q4.)

In line with 
national all 
authorities 

benchmark. 
National 

Benchmarking 
data is expected 

January 2018. 
Target will be 

confirmed once 
figures have been 

received. New 
measure in 
2017/2018

 

New measure in 
2017/2018

(reported in Q4)

43% 43% Higher 
percentage is 

better

n/a New measure in 
2017/2018

(reported in Q4)

P
age 39



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

68. Jobs created and safeguarded
The purpose of this commissioning strategy is for businesses in 
our most important sectors to be developed, to encourage 
investment in Lincolnshire and help to train people so that there 
is a skilled workforce to whom businesses can offer quality 
jobs.

202 Actual 
281

Target 
101

360 241 Higher 
percentage is 

better

69. Businesses supported by the Council
Number of businesses who receive direct support and advice 
from services the Council commission.

750 Actual 
544

Target 
375

797 542 Higher number 
of businesses 

supported is 
better

70. Qualifications achieved by Adults
Number of qualifications achieved (Skills programmes, vocational 
training programmes, adult and community learning) through 
programme support by the council.

630 Actual 
801

Target 
500

525 525 Higher amount 
of 

qualifications 
achieved is 

better.

Sustaining and 
growing business 
and the economy

The purpose of this 
commissioning 
strategy is for 
businesses in our 
most important 
sectors to be 
developed, to 
encourage 
investment in 
Lincolnshire and 
help to train people 
so that there is a 
skilled workforce to 
whom businesses 
can offer quality 
jobs.

Jobs created as a 
result of the Council's 
support

71. External funding attracted to 
Lincolnshire

Amount of external funding attracted to Lincolnshire (including 
Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership and European 
Union funding programmes) by the council. The 2017/18 target is 
made up of £30m LEP funding and £5m EU funding.  The timetable 
for LEP funding meant that none could be included in 2016/2017. 

£35,000,000 Actual 
£33,152,321

Target 
£32,500,000

£18,891,735 £21,391,735 Higher amount 
of external 
funding is 

better

72. Flooding incidents within a property
This measure is calculated on the basis of the number of formal 
investigations undertaken by the County Council under section 19 of 
the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 where the incident 
involves flooding within a property from any source, although under 
the Act the County Council only has a responsibility for local flood 
risk i.e. from surface water, groundwater or ordinary watercourses.  
Lincolnshire County Council has interpreted a flooding incident to be 
any in which one or more domestic properties are flooded internally.

This measure is 
included for 
context and so It 
is not appropriate 
to set a target for 
this measure

2 This measure is included for 
context and so It is not 

appropriate to set a target for 
this measure

Lower number 
of incidents is 

better

Protecting and 
sustaining the 
environment
The purpose of this 
commissioning 
strategy is an 
environment that 
supports economic 
growth. We think 
this can be best 
achieved when the 
environmental 
opportunities for 
investment are 
emphasised whilst 
still making sure 
that the natural 

Reduce the risk of 
flooding

73. Properties protected from flooding
It is estimated that in Lincolnshire there are about 28,000 properties 
which have either been flooded in the past or are thought to be at 
risk from surface water flooding. As outlined in the Lincolnshire Joint 
Flood Risk Management Strategy, in accordance with its duty to 
undertake improvement works to protect communities, the County 
Council as Lead Local Flood Authority has developed an ongoing 
programme of surface water flood risk management schemes.
(Reported annually in Q4.)

50 properties 
protected

Reported 
annually in Q4

50 properties 
protected

TBC once 
2018/19 

outturn is 
known

Higher number 
of properties 
protected is 

better

P
age 40



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

74. CO2 emissions from county council 
activity

Carbon dioxide (CO₂) is a greenhouse gas which contributes, along 
with other gasses, to global warming and the resulting climate 
change.  
The County Council is no different to any other organisation in that 
its activities use energy and emit significant amounts of these 
gasses.  
(Reported annually in Q1)
New baseline to be agreed for renewal of measure in 2018/19.

22% as at March 
2018

Actual 
as at March 2017 

17.47%

Target
 as at March 2017

18%

TBC in Quarter 
1 2018/19 when 
new baseline for 

the measure is 
agreed.

TBC once 
2018/19 

outturn is 
known.

Lower amount 
of emissions is 

better

Reduce carbon 
emissions   

75. Lincolnshire CO2 reductions
This is a nationally collected (by the Department for Communities 
and Local Government) set of data that shows the amount of 
greenhouse gas emissions (CO₂) from all sectors within the UK. The 
emissions for Lincolnshire are expressed as the amount of CO₂ 
emitted per person (capita).
(Reported annually in Q1.)

This measure is 
included for 
context and so It 
is not appropriate 
to set a target for 
this measure

Actual
5.9 tonnes 

emitted per 
person

2015

This is the latest 
data available from 
the Department of 

Energy and Climate 
Change 

This measure is included for 
context and so It is not 

appropriate to set a target for 
this measure

Lower number 
of emissions is 

better

73% 74%76.  Recycling at County Council owned 
Household Waste Recycling Centres 
(HWRC)

This measure excludes all sites which are not owned by Lincolnshire 
County Council as the Council has limited control and influence over 
what streams are recycled.
Performance includes some estimates where actual figures are not 
yet available.  Officially approved data is available four months after 
the end of the Quarter to which it applies.

75% Actual 
73.8%

Target 
75%

Through the new Joint Municipal 
Waste Management Strategy we 

will be seeking to review our 
HWRC service in order to 

overcome the challenges facing 
us and gradually return to our 
previous level of performance 

(75%).

Higher 
percentage is 

better

We are seeing an overall 
reduction in the HWRCs 

recycling rate; a 
contributing factor will be 

the processing of some 
materials has been 

moved down the waste 
hierarchy from recycling 

to recovery.

environment is 
protected.

Increase Recycling

77. Tonnage of recycling material 
collected at the kerbside

The tonnage of recycling material collected at the kerbside depends 
on how much is presented by the public in kerbside recycling 
collections and on how much of that material has to be excluded 
due to it being non- recyclable. This measure excludes waste that 
has been 'rejected' so that we can see how much recyclable 
material was collected. 
Performance includes some estimates where actual figures are not 
yet available.  Officially approved data is available four months after 

This measure is 
included for 

context and so It 
is not appropriate 
to set a target for 

this measure

Actual
26,176 tonnes

This measure is included for 
context and so It is not 

appropriate to set a target for 
this measure

Higher 
tonnage of 
recyclable 

material 
collected is 

better

P
age 41



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

the end of the Quarter to which it applies.
47% 48.5%78. Household waste recycled and 

composted
The percentage of waste collected by either the County or District 
Councils which was reused, recycled or composted.

55%
Joint Municipal 

Waste 
Management 

Strategy

Actual 
50.1%

Target 
55%

In line with our draft Joint Municipal 
Waste Management Strategy 

objective "To contribute to the UK 
recycling target of 50% by 2020", 

the targets reflect steady progress 
towards 50%.

Higher amount 
of household 

waste recycled 
is better

Our year-end forecast is 
less than the previous 
year due to an increase 
in the reported level of 
contamination (non-
recyclables) in the mixed 
dry recyclable material 
collected at the kerbside 
and the actual overall 
waste tonnage presented 
has reduced slightly. The 
aspirational target of 55% 
was set in our Joint 
Municipal Waste Strategy 
and need to be 
addressed. The Strategy 
is being refreshed in 
partnership with the 
District Councils.

79. Garden waste composted
The tonnage of green waste collected by either the County or 
District Councils which was sent for composting.

This measure is 
included for 

context and so It 
is not appropriate 
to set a target for 

this measure

Actual
53,294 tonnes

This measure is included for 
context and so It is not 

appropriate to set a target for 
this measure

Higher amount 
of green waste 

composted is 
better

81. Lincoln Eastern Bypass 
Contract awarded December 2016 and a start on site June 2017 
with completion December 2019. Under a separate contract 
Network Rail are due to hand over the Spalding Rail bridge to LCC 
in March 2018 to enable access under the railway. 

127. Grantham Southern Relief Road
Phase 1 commenced in September 2015 with completion in June 
2016.
Phase 2 expected to commence in April 2018 with completion in 
December 2019.
Phase 3 expected to commence in April 2019 with completion in 
May 2022 subject to no Public Inquiry.

Sustaining and 
developing 
prosperity 
through 
infrastructure

The purpose of this 
commissioning 
strategy is for 
infrastructure that 
supports economic 
growth and 
prosperity. 
We want to 
encourage 
investment and 
enhance the 
economic potential 
of Lincolnshire. We 
think this can be 

Reduce barriers to 
business growth

82. Spalding Western Relief Road
Phase 1 (Southern section known as Holland Park).  Following the 
EIP adoption LCC will submit a planning application for the road 
only with an aspiration works commencement in Autumn 2021. 
Section 5 (Northern Connection) – SHDC in collaboration with LCC 
have submitted a bid to HCA through the Housing Infrastructure 
Fund Marginal Viability option for approximately £12m.  If successful 
this will result in unlocking the opportunity to progress the project 
with a similar timescale as Section 1, only if the local plan is adopted 
and planning is granted.

Activities

P
age 42



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

83. Progress in preparation of the 
Lincoln Southern Relief Road

Preparing an Outline Business Case for submission. Aiming to 
submit a Department for Transport  Majors Fund bid in June 2018 
with three options using the corridor in Local Plan based in previous 
consultation.  

Activity

84. Condition of Principal roads 
Principal classified roads where maintenance should be considered 
as measured by SCANNER (Surface Condition Assessment for the 
National Network of Roads). Principal roads are A class roads e.g. 
A15, A158. Non-Principal classified roads are B and C class roads.
(Reported annually in Q4.)

3%
2016/17

Actual
 2%

based on 
condition surveys 

done during 
2016/17

3% TBC once 
latest 

condition 
surveys are 

completed 

Lower 
percentage is 

better

85. Condition of Non Principal roads  
Non Principal classified roads where maintenance should be 
considered as measured by SCANNER (Surface Condition 
Assessment for the National Network of Roads). Principal roads are 
A class roads e.g. A15, A158. Non-Principal classified roads are B 
and C class roads.
(Reported annually in Q4.)

9%
2016/17

Actual
5%

 based on 
condition surveys 

done during 
2016/17

7% TBC once 
latest 

condition 
surveys are 

completed

Lower 
percentage is 

better

86. Condition of Unclassified roads 
Unclassified roads where maintenance should be considered as 
measured by SCANNER (Surface Condition Assessment for the 
National Network of Roads). Principal roads are A class roads e.g. 
A15, A158. Non-Principal classified roads are B and C class roads.
(Reported annually in Q4.)

30%
2016/17

Actual 
29%

 2016/17 data

30% TBC once 
latest 

condition 
surveys are 

completed

Lower 
percentage is 

better

achieved by 
encouraging new 
investment in 
transport, 
supporting 
business, managing 
and maintaining a 
high quality 
highway network 
and encouraging a 
reliable and 
accessible transport 
service.

108. Public Satisfaction with Highways and 
Transport services

The National Highways and Transport (NHT) Network Public 
Satisfaction Survey collect public perspectives on, and satisfaction 
with, Highway and Transport Services in Local Authority areas. It is 
a unique, standardised, collaboration between Highway Authorities 
across the UK enabling comparison, knowledge sharing, and the 
potential to improve efficiencies by the sharing of good practice. The 
survey targets a balanced demographic of Lincolnshire's residents 
and provides detailed and summary results based on themes such 
as Highways Maintenance, Public Transport, Walking and Cycling, 
Tackling Congestion, Accessibility and Road Safety. The result for 
overall satisfaction is produced from a combination of these themes.

New measure for the CBP in 
2018/2019

52% To be in line 
with, or less 

than 2018/19 
outturn

Higher 
percentage is 

better

n/a as new measure 
for the CBP in 

2018/2019

P
age 43



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

We effectively target our resources
Effective financial 
and management 
accounting 
arrangements

88. Unqualified annual external audit 
opinion on the financial statements 

The external auditor's report is a formal opinion as a result of an 
external audit. An auditor's report is considered an essential tool 
when reporting financial information. (Annual Measure) 

Unqualified
2016/2017

Unqualified
2016/2017  

Unqualified
2017/2018

Unqualified 
2018/2019

n/a

General reserves 
maintained within 
parameters set by 
the financial strategy

89. General reserves are 2.5% to 3.5% of 
the annual budget requirement net of 
dedicated schools grant

General reserves are usually used for strengthening the financial 
position and meeting future contingencies or to offset potential 
future losses

3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% n/a

90. Unqualified annual external audit 
opinion on the Council's Value for 
Money 

(Annual Measure)

Unqualified
2016/2017

Unqualified 
2016/2017, 

except for the 
availability of 

information for 
informed decision 

making

Unqualified
2017/2018

Unqualified 
2018/19

n/a

91. Annual governance statement by the 
Audit Committee 

(Review of Council's governance, risk and control framework and 
assurance arrangements) (Effective or ineffective) (Reported 
annually in Q1.)

Effective with 
governance 

issues

Effective  with 
governance 

issues

Effective with 
governance 

issues 

Effective with 
governance 

issues

n/a

92. Employee turnover It is not 
appropriate to set 

a target for this 
measure as 

turnover is 
provided for 

context only.

Data not yet 
available

It is not appropriate to set a 
target for this measure as 

turnover is provided for context 
only.

n/a

Maintenance of an 
adequate 
governance, risk 
internal control, 
regime

93. Sickness absence  To be confirmed 
after 2017/2018 

Q1 data has been 
analysed

Data not yet 
available

TBC once 
2017/18 outturn 

is confirmed

TBC once 
2018/19 

outturn is 
confirmed

Lower number 
of days is 

better

n/a

How we do our 
business

Enablers to the 
business

Partnership 
engagement and 
support

These three 
commissioning 
strategies have 

been grouped 
together as they 

provide the 
corporate 

framework within 
which the Council 

works, supports 
other 

commissioning 
strategies and 
carries out its 

business.

Impact and increase 
employment and 
apprenticeship 
opportunities 
currently offered to 

106. Growth in apprenticeships and 
the knock on effect of the 
employment of young people 

Through the introduction of the new Apprenticeship Reforms, plans 
are being put in place to implement a long term goal to increase the 

This is a new 
measure in 

2017/18 (reported 
annually in Q4)

Reported 
annually in Q4

To be agreed once the 
implications of the 

Apprenticeship Reforms (which 
covers all ages) are understood.

n/a n/a

P
age 44



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

young people aged 
16 - 24 within 
Lincolnshire County 
Council

number of apprentices employed in substantive roles year on year. 
This will be monitored and measured by workforce data. 

94. Revenue savings 
Savings made by rationalising the property portfolio. Progression is 
made towards the proposed plan of identified savings. 
(Reported annually in Q4.)

£1 million by 
March 2019

The target 
represents what 

will be achieved if 
the programme of 

rationalisation is 
completed to 

schedule

Actual
£2,224,757

April 2015-March 
2017

Target
£1million by 
March 2019 

£1 million by 
March 2019

The target 
represents what 
will be achieved 

if the 
programme of 

rationalisation is 
completed to 

schedule

n/a Higher number 
of savings is 

better

Get better value from 
our use of land and 
buildings by 
assessing 
performance

95. Capital receipts  
Progression through property disposal towards a 
triennial set capital receipts target

£20million by 
April 2019

It is not 
appropriate to set 

an annual target 

Actual 
Jul 17 – Sept 17 

£1,361,633

Cumulative actual 
April 2016 – 

September 2017
£5,358,560  

£20million by 
April 2019

It is not 
appropriate to 
set an annual 

target

£20million by 
April 2019
It is not 

appropriate 
to set an 

annual target

Higher number 
is better

A further £1.7m of 
receipts has been 
generated – final contract 
documents are not yet 
signed therefore this 
figure is not included in 
the total

96. Information governance training 
This measure relates to the percentage of employees that undertake 
Information Governance training over a 12 month period. The 
subjects covered in the training include data protection, information 
security, freedom of information and records management.
(Reported annually in Q4.)

80%
2016/2017

Actual 
2016/2017 

 85%
Target 

2016/2017 
80%  

80% 80% Higher 
percentage is 

better

Staff are made 
aware of their 
information 
assurance 
responsibilities

97. Information assurance polices 
reviewed and updated within a 12 
month period

This measure relates to the number of information assurance 
policies that have been subject to review and update within the last 
12 months. The process of review and update ensures that policies 
remain relevant, accurate, and reflect any changes as dictated by 
changes in legislation, best practice or other external compliance 
requirements.
(Reported annually in Q4.)

100% 
2016/2017

Actual 
2016/2017 

100%

 

100% 100% Higher 
percentage is 

better

Record and 
investigate all 

reported security 
incidents in a timely 

manner to ensure 

98. Reported security incidents 
The measure relates to the number of security incidents relating to 
council assets reported to the council's Information Assurance Team 
over the previous 12 months. A security incident is any fact or event 
which results in the compromise, misuse, or loss of council 
information. Where the cause of a security incident is identified, for 

It is not 
appropriate to set 

a target for this 
measure

Actual 
2016/2017 

92

It is not appropriate to set a 
target for this measure

Lower number 
of incidents is 

better

P
age 45



 Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020

2018/19 and 2019/20 targets (where provided) in this document are informed by latest performance information (2017/2018 Q2) and are subject to change to reflect:- 2017/18 and 2018/19 out turns; changes in the wider economy; the nature of 
demand; the consequences of any service reductions; and any changes in priorities. This Council Business Plan will be reviewed as part of quarterly performance reporting. Any proposed changes to reporting will be agreed by the Executive.     

Commissioning 
Strategy

Outcomes 
Outcomes are the results 
or benefits for individuals, 
families, groups, 
communities, 
organisations or systems. 
Outcomes reflect priorities 
and resources are 
allocated to achieve 
stated outcomes.

Measures
Measures are how we will monitor and report progress in achieving 
the outcome. 

Annual Target
April 2017 – 
March 2018
Unless otherwise 
stated

Latest 
Performance 
and Target
April 2017 – 
Sept 2017 
-at time of writing
-Cumulative
Unless otherwise 
stated

Annual Target 
April 2018- 

March 2019

Annual 
Target April 
2019- March 
2020

Direction of 
Travel

April – Sept 2017
- Achieved (within 

target range)

- Improving but not 
yet achieved

           - Not achieved

- Measured

impact is minimised 
and effective remedial 

action undertaken to 
reduce the likelihood 

of reoccurrence

example human error or malicious activity, corrective action is 
recommended in order to reduce the risk of an incident reoccurring.  
(Reported annually in Q4.)

Meet external 
information assurance 

compliance 
requirements

99. Public Services Network connection 
Compliance

PSN (Public Services Network) is a network operated by a number 
of suppliers for government that provides a trusted, reliable, solution 
to departments, agencies, local authorities and other bodies that 
work in the public sector. Maintaining compliance requires the 
council to meet a number of information assurance requirements 
designed to provide an achievable and sensible baseline for 
security.
(Reported annually in Q4.)

Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant n/a

New support services 
partnership contracts 

perform effectively 
and efficiently to allow 
the Council to achieve 

its commissioning 
outcomes

101. Achievement of key 
performance indicators within the 
VINCI Mouchel contract (Property 
Services) 

An overall score of over 75% is required for the contractor to benefit 
from financial incentives gained by performing lower than their target 
costs.

75% Actual 
90.7%

Target 
75%

75% 75% Higher 
percentage is 

better

Meet external 
information assurance 

compliance 
requirements

102. Department of Health 
Information Governance Toolkit 

The Information Governance Toolkit is an online system which 
allows NHS organisations and partners to assess themselves 
against Department of Health Information Governance policies and 
standards. The measure is successful annual submission of the 
Department of Health Information Governance toolkit.
(Reported annually in Q1.)

Compliant Compliant Compliant Compliant n/a

New support services 
partnership contracts 
perform effectively and 
efficiently to allow the 
Council to achieve its 
commissioning 
outcomes

100. Achievement of key performance indicators 
within the SERCO contract for Information 
Management Technology; People Management; 
Finance and Customer Service Centre  

Meet targets within 
the contract

Please note the 
range of measures 

wef 1 Dec 2016 
have been 

amended following 
change control

Of the 41 measures, 
performance for 
November 2017: 38 
met contract Target 
Service Levels; 1 met 
contract Minimum 
Service Levels; 0 
were below contract 
Minimum Service 
Level; 2 had an 
excusing 
cause/mitigation 
factor associated with 
it.

Meet targets 
within the 

contract

Meet targets 
within the 

contract

n/a n/a

P
age 46



1

Appendix B Changes from Council Business Plan 2017/2018 to 2018/2020 

Measures removed

Commissioning Strategy Measure Ref 
No

Reason Executive Director

Sustaining and 
developing prosperity 
through infrastructure

Lincoln East West Link 
Road

80 Scheme completed in January 2017 Richard Wills

Adult Safeguarding People report they feel 
safe

27 Doesn't relate to safeguarding intervention, Adult Social 
Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) measure too 
general and doesn't give any insight.

Glen Garrod

Specialist Adult Services Overall satisfaction with 
care and support

53 Low response rates from survey for this group gives 
rise to too big a confidence interval and more volatility.

Glen Garrod

Carers who receive a 
direct payment

54 No longer appropriate as does not reflect an increase 
in' Whole Family Approach' to monitoring. 

Glen Garrod

Carer reported quality of 
life

55 This indicator is made up of the answers to 6 questions 
in the Carers biennial survey. Performance in this 
indicator cannot be traced back to a specific question or 
theme nor is it realistic to improve the outcomes for 
carers in up to 6 areas.

Glen Garrod

Carers supported to delay 
the care and support for 
the person they care for

57 Indicator no longer serving as an effective prevention 
measure, as the priority is collaboration.

Glen Garrod

Carers who find it easy to 
find information about 
services

58 Reporting from the biennial survey is too infrequent. Glen Garrod

Carers

Protecting the Public

Youth Offending Victim 
Engagement 16 No longer a priority measure. Debbie Barnes

P
age 47



2

Measures added

Commissioning Strategy Measure Ref 
No

Reason Executive 
Director/Director

Sustaining and 
developing prosperity 
through infrastructure

Public satisfaction with 
Highways and Transport 
Services

108 To provide a view of the public perspective on 
Highways and Transport Services.

Richard Wills

People supported to 
successfully quit smoking

111 Supports a number of areas of the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment and aligns to the Public Health 
Outcomes Framework which measures a number of 
population level outcomes regarding smoking. 

Glen Garrod

Percentage of people 
accessing housing-related 
support services that are 
successfully supported to 
access and maintain their 
settled accommodation

112 Supports the Council to meet its Care Act 
responsibilities regarding prevention and also supports 
wider Public Health Outcomes Framework outcomes 
regarding housing. The target is aligned to the KPI in 
the contract.

Glen GarrodCommunity Wellbeing

Percentage of emergency 
and urgent deliveries and 
collections completed on 
time within Integrated 
Community Equipment 
Services

113 This is a core commissioned service in the Community 
Wellbeing Commissioning Strategy and supports the 
Council to meet its Care Act responsibilities. The target 
is aligned to the KPI in the contract.

Glen Garrod

Adult Safeguarding
Percentage of concluded 
Section 42 enquiries 
where the desired 
outcomes were fully or 
partially achieved

116 New measure to track the progress on Making 
Safeguarding Personal (MSP).  This will be derived 
from the new mandatory reporting table in the 
Safeguarding Adults Collection (SAC).  

Glen Garrod

Percentage of adults aged 
18-64 with a mental health 
problem living 
independently 

117 LPFT measure, expected to be reported from Q1 
2018/19. 

Glen Garrod

P
age 48



3

Specialist Adult Services
Percentage of carers who 
reported that they had as 
much social contact as 
they would like

120 Identified from the last survey as significantly impacting 
on a carers' quality of life.  Linked to social isolation 
project in Community Wellbeing and with employment 
project with the Lincolnshire carers Service.

Glen Garrod

Percentage of eligible 
carers (caring for adults) 
who have received a 
review of their needs in 
the period

121 New measure to ensure LCC's responsibilities under 
the Care Act are met to review carers who meet the 
national threshold for support.

Glen GarrodCarers

Percentage of completed 
episodes of Reablement 
where the outcome was 
either no ongoing support 
or support of a lower level

124 Monitor the effectiveness of the Reablement service.  
Lincolnshire are the best performing authority in this 
respect compared to our CIPFA comparator group.

Glen Garrod

Changes to measures

Commissioning 
Strategy 

Measure changed from Ref Measure changed to Reason Director

Community 
Wellbeing

Number of Health and Social 
Care Staff trained in Making 
Every Contact Count (MECC)

103/
109

Number of frontline staff and 
volunteers trained in making 
Every Contact Count (MECC) 
(measure 109)

Proposed descriptor 
change to reflect the 
wider workforce to 
which the programme is 
being rolled out. 
Whilst the proposed 
measure is not a Public 
Health Outcomes 
Framework indicator the 
measure meets needs 
identified in the Joint 
Strategic Needs 
Assessment. 

Glen Garrod

P
age 49



4

Community 
Wellbeing

Older people supported by the 
Wellbeing service to maintain 
their independence

32/
110

People supported by the 
Wellbeing Service to improve 
their outcomes 

The proposed measure 
supports a number of 
areas of the Joint 
Strategic Needs 
Assessment and the 
Council to meet its Care 
Act responsibilities 
regarding prevention. 
The proposed measure 
is also aligns to the KPI 
in the newly 
commissioned 
Wellbeing Service. 

Glen Garrod

Safeguarding referrals where the 
'source of risk' is a service 
provider

29/
114

Percentage of completed 
Section 42 safeguarding 
enquiries where risk was 
identified where the 'source of 
risk' is a service provider.  

Previous measure 
doesn't relate to 
safeguarding 
intervention, Adult 
Social Care Outcomes 
Framework (ASCOF) 
measure too general 
and doesn't give any 
insight. This enables 
benchmarking from the 
Safeguarding Collection 
with other authorities. 

Glen GarrodAdult 
Safeguarding

Adult safeguarding reviews 
where risk was reduced or 
removed

30/
115

Percentage of 'Deprivation of 
Liberty Safeguards' (DoLS) 
applications completed

LCC not able to always 
remove or reduce risk 
as person can make 
own decisions to accept 
risk. Superseded by 
new measure which will 
be a more accurate 
measure of success of 
safeguarding 
intervention. A national 

Glen Garrod

P
age 50



5

issue post 'Cheshire 
West' judgement, which 
impacted all authorities.  

Adults in contact with secondary 
mental health services living 
independently

50/
117

Percentage of adults aged 18-
64 with a mental health problem 
living independently

Low ability to 
influence outturns on 
performance. 
Superseded by new 
LPFT measure which 
reflects S75 MH clients 
where independence 
can be influenced.

Glen GarrodSpecialist Adult 
Services

Adults who have received a 
review of their need (Learning 
Disability or Mental Health)

52/
118/
119

118 - Percentage of adults with 
a learning disability in receipt of 
long term support for 12 months 
or more who have been 
reviewed in the period
119 - Percentage of adults aged 
18-64 with a mental health need 
in receipt of long term support 
for 12 months or more who have 
been reviewed in the period

This indicator is now 
split into 2 new review 
measures one for LD 
(118) and one for MH 
(119). The measure was 
combined previously, 
with two new measures 
created to monitor 
(internal) learning 
disability and (S75 
commissioned) LPFT 
mental health activity 
separately.  

Glen Garrod

Requests for support from new 
clients, where the outcome was 
universal services/signposting

61/
122

Percentage of requests for 
support for new clients, aged 65 
or over, where the outcome was 
long term support services

The previous measure 
did not reflect the extent 
of the preventative work 
in Adult Care and 
Community Wellbeing 
which ultimately aims to 
reduce the number of 
new clients requiring 
long term funded care.

Glen GarrodAdult Frailty

People using the service with 
control over their daily life

62/
123

Percentage of people who 
report that services help them to 

The original measure 
has been replaced by 

Glen Garrod

P
age 51



6

have control over their daily life
(Survey measure)

the survey which will 
more closely measure 
the 'impact' of the social 
care service in helping 
the person to have 
control over their daily 
life, rather than a client's 
general feeling of 
control (similar to 
generally feeling safe 
that was also removed)

Protecting the 
Public

Juvenile re-offending 18/
125

Juvenile re-offending The Ministry of Justice 
has changed the 
methodology for 
measuring reoffending. 
There has been a move 
to a three month cohort 
rather than a 12 month 
cohort. The cohort will 
still be tracked over 12 
months. Changing from 
12 month cohorts to the 
3 month cohorts results 
in a greater proportion 
of prolific offenders and 
hence higher 
reoffending rates, 
though both measures 
show similar trends over 
time at a national level.

Debbie 
Barnes

How we do our 
business

Enablers to the 
business

Information Governance  Policies 97 Information Assurance Policies Reflect change in 
terminology

Richard Wills

P
age 52



7

Partnership 
engagement and 
support

Changes to wording of outcomes

Commissioning Strategy Outcome changed from Outcome changed to Director
How we do our business

Enablers to the business

Partnership engagement 
and support

Staff are made aware of 
their information 
governance 
responsibilities 

Staff are made aware of their information assurance 
responsibilities

Tony McArdle

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C - Equalities Objectives in the Council Business Plan 2018 - 2020 

The Equality Act 2010 brought together all previous equality legislation in England, Scotland and Wales. The Act includes the public sector equality duty 
(the equality duty), which replaced the former duties relating to race, disability and gender equality. The equality duty came into force on 5 April 2011. 
The duty requires public bodies to publish at least one equality objective to achieve any one of the things mentioned in the aims of the general duty:-

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it.
 Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it.
 Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act.

Equalities objectives had to be published for the first time by 6 April 2012 and then at least every 4 years. We first published our equalities objectives in 
the council business plan approved by Council in February 2012. Our equalities objectives were reviewed and published in the council business plan 
approved by Council in February 2016.   

The Equality and Human Rights Commission guidance is that equality objectives are seen as part of the business plan.  The equalities objectives have 
been updated to reflect the changes in the council business plan. 

As well as these equality considerations, the measures within the Council Business Plan have also been developed taking into account a number of 
other relevant considerations including the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the Child Poverty Strategy and 
the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.

P
age 55



Commissioning 
Strategy

Proposed equality 
objective
(Commissioning 
strategy outcome)

Measures Protected 
characteristics

Aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty

Increase public 
confidence in how we 
tackle domestic abuse  

Reported incidents of 
domestic abuse (Measure 7)

Domestic homicides (Measure 
8)

Repeat victims of domestic 
abuse to MARAC (Measure 9) 

 Race
 Sex
 Sexual 

orientation

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited 
by or under the Act.

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

Protecting the 
public

Reduce the number of 
young people 
committing a crime

Juvenile First Time Offenders 
(Measure 15)

Juvenile Re-offending 
(Measure 125)

 Age
 Race
 Sex

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

Foster good relations between people who share a 
protected characteristic and people who do not 
share it.

Children are 
safe and 
healthy

Children are safe and 
healthy

Looked After Children 
(Measure 23)

Children who are subject to a 
child protection plan (Measure 
24)

Average time taken to move a 
child from care to an adoptive 
family (Measure 25)
 
Average time taken to match 
a child to an adoptive family 
(Measure 26)

 Age
 Disability
 Sex

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

P
age 56



Safeguarding 
adults

Safeguarding adults 
whose circumstances 
make them vulnerable, 
protecting them from 
avoidable harm and 
acting in their best 
interests where they 
lack capacity

Safeguarding cases 
supported by an advocate 
(Measure 28)

Percentage of completed 
safeguarding enquiries where 
risk was identified, where the 
'source of risk' is a service 
provider (Measure 114)

Percentage of outstanding 
Deprivation of Liberty (DoL's) 
applications completed 
(Measure 115)

 Disability
 Age
 Sex
 Race

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited 
by or under the Act.

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

Wellbeing People are able to live 
life to the full and 
maximise their 
independence

Percentage of people 
supported by the Wellbeing 
Service to improve their 
outcomes (Measure 110)

Percentage of people 
accessing housing-related 
support services that are 
successfully 'supported to 
access and maintain their 
settled accommodation' 
(Measure 112)

Percentage of emergency 
and urgent deliveries and 
collections completed on time 
within Integrated Community 
Equipment Services (Measure 
113)

 Age
 Disability
 Sex

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant characteristic and people who do 
not share it.

Community 
resilience and 

Make a positive 
difference for our 

We want to make a positive 
difference for our 

All protected 
characteristics 

Eliminate discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited 

P
age 57



communities. When we 
review or introduce a 
new policy or activity, 
commission, begin a 
new project, 
decommission or help 
communities to do 
things for themselves, 
we will always assess 
the impact on people 
with protected 
characteristics. This 
analysis helps us to 
make informed 
decisions.

communities. When we 
review or introduce a new 
policy or activity, commission, 
begin a new project, 
decommission or help 
communities to do things for 
themselves, we will always 
assess the impact on people 
with protected characteristics. 
This analysis helps us to 
make informed decisions 
(Measure 40)

will be 
considered as 
part of EIAs.

by or under the Act.

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

assets

Communities and 
residents are 
supported to be 
involved in local 
decision making and 
have their views taken 
into account

People supported who have 
accessed volunteer 
opportunities through 
Lincolnshire County Council 
(Measure 105)

 Age
 Disability

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant characteristic and people who do 
not share it. 

Foster good relations between people who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and people who do 
not share it.

Readiness for 
adult life

Young people are 
supported to reach 
their potential

Achievement gap between 
disadvantaged pupils and 
their peers at Key Stage 4 
(Measure 42)

16-17 year old Looked After 
Children participating in 
Learning (Measure 45)

Care Leavers in suitable 
accommodation (Measure 46)

 Disability
 Age
 Sex
 Race

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

Readiness for There is a secure Achievement at a good level  Age Advance equality of opportunity between people who 

P
age 58



school foundation for all 
children to progress 
through school and life   

of development in the Early 
Years Foundation Stage  
(Measure 47)

Achievement gap between 
disadvantaged pupils and 
their peers at Foundation 
stage (Measure 48)

 Disability
 Sex
 Race

share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

Learn and 
Achieve

Improve educational 
attainment for all pupils

Permanent exclusions 
(Measure 67)

Percentage of pupils 
achieving the threshold in 
English and mathematics at 
Key Stage 4 (Measure 104)

 Age
 Disability
 Sex

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

Enhanced quality of life 
and care for people 
with learning disability, 
autism and or mental 
health

Adults with learning 
disabilities who live in their 
own home or with family 
(Measure 49)

Adults who receive a direct 
payment (Learning Disability 
or Mental Health) (Measure 51)

Percentage of adults aged 
18-64 with a mental health 
problem living independently 
(Measure 117)

 Disability
 Age
 Sex

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a protected characteristic and people who do 
not share it

Specialist Adult
Services

People have a positive 
experience of care

Percentage of adults with a 
learning disability in receipt of 
long term support for 12 
months or more who have 
been reviewed in the period 
(Measure 118)

 Disability Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

P
age 59



Percentage of adults aged 
18-64 with a mental health 
need in receipt of long term 
support for 12 months or 
more who have been 
reviewed in the period 
(Measure 119)

Carers
.

Carers feel valued and 
respected and able to 
maintain their caring 
roles

Carers included or consulted 
in discussions about the 
person they care for (Measure 
56)

Carers supported in the last 
12 months per 100,000 
(Measure 59)

Percentage of carers who 
reported that they had as 
much social contact as they 
would like (Measure 120)

Percentage of eligible carers 
(caring for adults) who have 
received a review of their 
needs in the period (Measure 
121)

 Age
 Sex
 Disability

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

Adult Frailty 
and long Term 
Conditions

Enhance the quality of 
life for people with care 
and support needs

Adults who receive a direct 
payment (Adult Frailty and 
Long Term conditions) 
(Measure 63)

Percentage of people who 
report that services help them 
to have control over their daily 

 Age
 Disability
 Sex

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

P
age 60



life (Measure 123)
Delay and reduce the 
need for care and 
support

Permanent admissions to 
residential and nursing care 
homes aged 65+ (Measure 60)

Percentage of requests for 
support for new clients, aged 
65 and over, where the 
outcome was long term 
support services (Measure 
122)

Percentage of completed 
episodes of Reablement 
where the outcome was either 
no ongoing support or support 
of a lower level (Measure 124)

People in receipt of long term 
support who have been 
reviewed (Measure 65)

 Age
 Disability
 Sex

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

Learn and 
Achieve

Improve educational 
attainment for all pupils

Permanent exclusions (67)

Percentage of pupils 
achieving the threshold in 
English and mathematics at 
Key Stage 4 (Measure 104)

 Age
 Disability
 Sex

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and people 
who do not share it.

P
age 61



How we do our 
business

Enablers to the 
business

Partnership 
engagement 
and support

Impact and increase 
employment and 
apprenticeship 
opportunities currently 
offered to young 
people aged 16 - 24 
within Lincolnshire 
County Council.

Growth in apprenticeships 
and the knock on effect of the 
employment of young people 
(Measure 106)

 Age
 Disability

Advance equality of opportunity between people who 
share a protected characteristic and people who do 
not share it

P
age 62



 

 
County Council 

 

Open Report on behalf of Tony McArdle, Chief Executive 

 

Report to: County Council 

Date: 23 February 2018 

Subject: 
Interim Arrangements following the Resignation of the 
Chief Executive 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This Report seeks approval for interim arrangements to take effect between the 
resignation of the existing Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service on 28 
February 2018 and the appointment of a new Chief Executive and Head of Paid 
Service including changes to the designated Head of Paid Service, Returning 
Officer and Monitoring Officer and changes to the Constitution 

 
 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Council with effect from and including 1 March 2018 
 

1. Designates the Executive Director for Environment and Economy as the 
Council's Head of Paid Service; 

 
2. Designates the Chief Legal Officer as the Council's Monitoring Officer 

 
3. Appoints Richard Wills, the Executive Director for Environment and 

Economy as the Returning Officer for County Council by-elections  
 

4. Approves the amendments to the Constitution attached at Appendix A 
 

 
1. Background 
 
On 28 February 2018, Tony McArdle will leave his employment with the Council as 
the Council's Chief Executive and Head of Paid Service. 
 
The position of Chief Executive is a post within the Council's officer structure.  This 
is not a position that the Council is under any obligation to have or immediately to 
recruit to.  When the current chief executive leaves, the post of Chief Executive will 
become vacant and remain so until a permanent replacement chief executive is 
appointed. 
 
The role of Head of Paid Service is not a separate post within the structure.  The 
Council has a statutory obligation under section 4 of the Local Government and 

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



 

Housing Act 1989 to designate one of its officers as the Head of Paid Service.  At 
present the post of Chief Executive is designated as also being the Council's Head 
of Paid Service.  The role of the Head of Paid Service is to determine the size, 
structure and organisation of the officer paid service and to manage that paid 
service including taking responsibility for the employment rights and responsibilities 
of the Council including recruitment and dismissal. 
 
Therefore although the post of Chief Executive can remain vacant the Council 
must, in the absence of a Chief Executive, take steps to designate one of its other 
officers as the Head of Paid Service.  It is proposed that Richard Wills, the 
Executive Director for Environment and Economy is designated as the Head of 
Paid Service. 
 
The Council also has an obligation under section 5 of the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 to designate one of its officers as the Council's Monitoring 
Officer to fulfil the responsibilities under section 5 and 5A of that Act to report 
unlawfulness or maladministration in the exercise of the Council's functions.  The 
Monitoring Officer also has a role both in law and under the Council's Constitution 
in supporting the Council in maintaining high standards of conduct and in 
managing complaints against Councillors under the Council's Code of Member 
Conduct. 
 
Under clause 5(1A) of the 1989 Act the person designated as the Monitoring 
Officer cannot be the same individual as is designated as the Council's Head of 
Paid Service. 
 
The Executive Director for Environment and Economy is currently designated as 
the Monitoring Officer.  Therefore, if the Executive Director for Environment and 
Economy is designated as the Head of Paid Service, the Council will need to 
designate another of its officers as the Monitoring Officer.  It is proposed that the 
Chief Legal Officer be designated as the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Section 35 of the Representation of the People Act 1983 requires the Council to 
appoint one of its officers as the Returning Officer for County Council elections 
including by-elections.  At its meeting on 19 May 2017 the Council appointed Tony 
McArdle the Chief Executive as the Returning Officer for County Council by-
elections that arise during the Council term (2017-2021).   
 
This decision now needs to be revisited and it is proposed that Richard Wills, 
Executive Director for Environment and Economy is appointed as Returning Officer 
for County Council by-elections that arise during the Council's term. 
 
The County Council's Constitution contains a number of provisions that relate to 
the designation of the Head of Paid Service and Monitoring Officer and there are a 
number of Constitutional delegations, processes and procedures that are 
exercisable or require action to be taken by the Chief Executive.  Whilst the Chief 
Executive post remains vacant it is necessary to ensure the smooth operation of 
the Council's business that these delegations and actions are allocated to other 
Chief Officers. 
 

Page 64



 

Appendix A therefore sets out a number of amendments to the Constitution to give 
effect to such re-allocations.  The main substantive change is in Part 3 of the 
Constitution. The general strategic management delegations previously given to 
the Chief Executive have been allocated to the Executive Director for Environment 
and Economy to support his designation as the Head of Paid Service.  Operational 
responsibilities for such areas as business planning, equalities, commissioning, 
procurement and the Serco contract have been transferred to the Executive 
Director of Finance and Public Protection. 
 
The opportunity has also been taken to identify the Head of Democratic Services 
as the Council's statutory Scrutiny Officer and the Executive Director for 
Environment and Economy as the Council's Traffic Manager. 
 
The required changes to the Constitution are quite extensive and range widely 
across the document.  In order to make the presentation of the changes 
manageable Appendix A consists only of the pages to which amendments have 
been made and those surrounding pages that are reasonably necessary to 
understand the context of the changes. 
 
The recommendations in this Report are proposed to ensure the continued smooth 
running of the Council following the resignation of the Chief Executive and to 
comply with the Council's legal obligations.  It is intended that the new permanent 
Chief Executive will also be the Head of Paid Service and Returning Officer.  At 
this point the designation of Monitoring Officer will also be reviewed. 
 
At that point a further report will be brought to Council to give effect to any 
changes. 
 
2. Legal Issues: 
 
Equality Act 2010 

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Council must, in the exercise of its 
functions, have due regard to the need to: 

*           Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under the Act 

*           Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 

*           Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender reassignment; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation 

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to: 

*           Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic 

*           Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it 

Page 65



 

*           Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionately low 

The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from 
the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities 

Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to tackle prejudice, and promote 
understanding 

Compliance with the duties in section 149 may involve treating some persons more 
favourably than others 

The duty cannot be delegated and must be discharged by the decision-maker.  To 
discharge the statutory duty the decision-maker must analyse all the relevant 
material with the specific statutory obligations in mind.  If a risk of adverse impact is 
identified consideration must be given to measures to avoid that impact as part of 
the decision making process 

There are not considered to be any equalities implications of the recommendations 
set out in the Report. 

 

Joint Strategic Needs Analysis (JSNA) and the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(JHWS) 

The Council must have regard to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
and the Joint Health & Well Being Strategy (JHWS) in coming to a decision 

There are not considered to be any JSNA or JHWS implications of the 
recommendations set out in the Report. 

 

Crime and Disorder 

Under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council must exercise its 
various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those 
functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour adversely affecting 
the local environment), the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its 
area and re-offending in its area 

 

3. Conclusion
 
This Report sets out proposals to ensure the smooth running of the Council 
following the resignation of the Chief Executive and to ensure compliance with the 

There are not considered to be any crime and disorder implications of the 
recommendations set out in the Report. 

Page 66



 

Council's legal obligations in terms of designating one of its officers  to the statutory 
posts of Head of Paid Service and Monitoring Officer and appointing one of its 
officers as Returning Officer. 
 

4. Legal Comments: 
 

The Council is required to designate one of its officers as Head of Paid Service 
and one of its officers as Monitoring Officer.  One officer cannot be designated to 
both roles.  The Council must also appoint one of its officers as Returning Officer. 
 
This Report enables the Council to comply with these legal obligations. 
 
The proposed changes to the Constitution will enable the Council's decision-
making and scrutiny functions to continue to be administered in accordance with 
the Constitution and procedural propriety whilst the Chief Executive post is 
vacant. 
 
The decisions set out in the recommendations are all reserved to the full Council 
and are within the remit of the full Council 
 

 

5. Resource Comments: 
 

The proposals within this report can be met from within the existing budgets of the 
Council. 
 

 
6. Consultation 

 
a)  Has Local Member Been Consulted? 

N/A 
 

b)  Has Executive Councillor Been Consulted?  

N/A 

c)  Scrutiny Comments 

The proposals in the Report have not been considered by a Scrutiny Committee 
 

 

 
 

d)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out?? 

Yes 

e)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

See the body of the Report 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 67



 

7. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Amendments to the Constitution 

 
 

8. Background Papers 
 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Council Report 
"Appointment of Returning 
Officer for By-Elections 
2017-2021" 19 May 2017 

Democratic Services 

The Council's Constitution Democratic Services 

 
 
This report was written by Tony McArdle, who can be contacted on 01522 552000 
or tony.mcardle@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
County Council 

 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills, Monitoring Officer 

 

Report to: County Council 

Date: 23 February 2018 

Subject: 
Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board Membership 
Review  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

At the Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board meeting in June 2017 it was 
agreed that a review of the Board's membership should be undertaken to 
ensure the right representation is in place to drive forward the new Joint Health 
and Wellbeing Strategy, and to take account of wider developments across the 
health and care system. 
 
A paper setting out proposals to extend the membership of the Board to include 
the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chairman of the Lincolnshire 
Coordination Group was presented to the Board in December 2017.  Approval 
is now being sought from Council to make the proposed appointments and 
make the necessary changes to the Constitution. 

 
 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Council approves:- 
 

1. The appointment of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire 
together with the Chairman of the Lincolnshire Co-ordination Board as 
members of the Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board; and  

 
2. The associated changes to the Constitution as detailed in Appendix A. 

 

 
1. Background 
 
1.1 Statutory Context 
 
Under section 194 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012, all upper tier and 
unitary authorities are required to establish a Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) 
for its area.  In 2013, the Lincolnshire HWB was formally established as a 
committee of Lincolnshire County Council.  The functions of the HWB are set out in 
Sections 195 and 196 of the Act as set out in Appendix A. 
 

Page 151

Agenda Item 9



 

In addition to the statutory functions listed in Appendix A, the Act also makes 
provision for the local authority to delegate any powers or functions exercisable by 
the authority to the HWB. 
 
The Act states the statutory core membership of the HWB is to consist of: 

 at least one councillor of the local authority 

 the Director of Adult Social Services for the local authority 

 the Director of Children's Services for the local authority 

 the Director of Public Health for the local authority 

 a representative of the local Healthwatch organisation for the area of the 
local authority 

 a representative of each relevant Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

 such other persons, or representatives of such other persons, as the local 
authority thinks appropriate 

 
County Councillor members of the HWB are directly appointed by the Leader of the 
Council.  Additional persons may be appointed by the County Council as members 
of the HWB as it thinks appropriate at any point.  Before any new member is 
appointed to the HWB, however, the HWB must be consulted.  The current 
membership of the HWB as detailed in the Council's Constitution is shown in 
Appendix A. 
 
1.2 Membership Review 
 
At the HWB meeting in June 2017, the Board agreed to undertake a review of its 
membership to ensure engagement with the right key partners to enable the HWB 
to be the driving force for closer integration between health and care.  Review was 
undertaken within the context of: 

 National policy requiring closer integration 

 the emerging priority areas for the next Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

 the relationships and linkages with the Sustainability and Transformation 
Plan (STP) 

 the establishment of the Housing, Health and Care Delivery Group (a sub 
group of the HWB) 

 
As part of the review, HWB members were asked to submit their views on whether 
the HWB membership should be extended or refreshed.  In addition, desktop 
research was also undertaken into different membership models from elsewhere in 
England.  A working group of the HWB, made up of representation from the County 
Council, CCGS and District Councils, met on 31 October 2017 to consider the 
findings of the review.  A report, setting out the working group's proposals for 
extending the HWB membership was presented to the HWB on 5 December 2017, 
a copy of which is attached at Appendix B. 
 
1.3 Proposed changes to HWB membership 
 
The HWB endorsed the proposals put forward by the working group to extend core 
membership to: 

Page 152



 

 the Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire to enable closer joint 
working on key areas such as mental health, and 

 the Chairman of the Lincolnshire Coordination Board to strengthen the links 
with the STP. 

 
The Council is therefore requested to exercise its power under Section 194(2)(g) of 
the Health and Social Care Act 2012 to appoint the Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Lincolnshire together with the Chairman of the Lincolnshire Co-
ordination Board to the HWB with immediate effect. 
 
The requirement that the Council consult with the HWB is met by reason of the 
changes being proposed by the HWB. 
 
As a committee of the County Council, these additions to the HWB membership will 
require changes to be made to the Constitution. Council is therefore asked to 
approve the changes to Section 7.06 in Part 2 of the Constitution as set out in 
Appendix A. 
 
2. Legal Issues: 
 
Equality Act 2010 

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Council must, in the exercise of its 
functions, have due regard to the need to: 

*           Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under the Act 

*           Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 

*           Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender reassignment; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation 

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to: 

*           Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic 

*           Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it 

*           Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionately low 

The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from 
the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities 

Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having 

Page 153



 

due regard, in particular, to the need to tackle prejudice, and promote 
understanding 

Compliance with the duties in section 149 may involve treating some persons more 
favourably than others 

The duty cannot be delegated and must be discharged by the decision-maker.  To 
discharge the statutory duty the decision-maker must analyse all the relevant 
material with the specific statutory obligations in mind.  If a risk of adverse impact is 
identified consideration must be given to measures to avoid that impact as part of 
the decision making process 

As a formal change to the Council's governance arrangements the proposals are 
not considered to have an adverse impact on people who share a protected 
characteristic compared with those who do not. 

 

Joint Strategic Needs Analysis (JSNA and the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(JHWS) 

The Council must have regard to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
and the Joint Health & Well Being Strategy (JHWS) in coming to a decision 

As formal changes to the Council's governance arrangements there are not 
considered to be any implications of the proposals for the JSNA and JHWS.  
Although the inclusion of the additional HWB members will enable closer working 
on the wider determinants of health and wellbeing. 

 

Crime and Disorder 

Under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council must exercise its 
various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those 
functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour adversely affecting 
the local environment), the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its 
area and re-offending in its area 

 
3. Conclusion 
 
The HWB agreed to review its membership to ensure the right representation is in 
place to drive forward the emerging priorities in the new Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy and to take account of wider developments across the local health and 
care system.  In line with statutory requirements, the review has sought the views 
of current HWB members.  The proposals put forward by the HWB require the 

As formal changes to the Council's governance arrangements there are not 
considered to be any implications of the proposals for crime and disorder.   
Although the inclusion of the additional HWB members will enable closer working 
on those wider determinants of health and wellbeing which also impact on crime 
and disorder. 

Page 154



 

Council to exercise its powers to appoint additional members to the HWB and 
changes to the Constitution and therefore approval is required by Council. 

 

4. Legal Comments: 
 

The Council has the power to make the proposed appointments to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board 
 
As the Health and Wellbeing Board is a Committee of the Council decisions on 
the membership of the Committee are reserved to the full Council 
 

 

5. Resource Comments: 
 
It can be confirmed that there are no financial implications regarding the 
proposed appointments to the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
 

 
 
6. Consultation 

 
a)  Has Local Member Been Consulted? 

n/a 
 

b)  Has Executive Councillor Been Consulted?  

Yes 

c)  Scrutiny Comments 

This decision has not been considered by the Scrutiny Committees 
 
 

 
 

d)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out? 

No 

e)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

Not applicable 
 

 
7. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Extract from Part 2 of the Constitution pages 2/44 - 2/46 

Appendix B Report to Health and Wellbeing Board 

 
 
 
 

Page 155



 

8. Background Papers 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Health and Social 
Care Act 2012 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/7/contents/enacted 

 
This report was written by Alison Christie, Programme Manager Health and 
Wellbeing, who can be contacted on 01522 552322 or 
alison.christie@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 156



Appendix A 
(Extract from Part 2 of the Constitution pages 2/44 – 2/46) 

 
7.06  Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
There will be a Health and Wellbeing Board.  The Board will comprise: 
 
The Executive Councillor for NHS Liaison, Community Engagement 
The Executive Councillor for Adult Care, and Health Services, and Children's Services 
The Executive Councillor for Libraries, Heritage, Culture, Registration and Coroners Service 
and Emergency Services 
Five further County Councillors 
The Director of Public Health 
The Executive Director of Children's Services 
The Executive Director of Adult Social Services Care 
 
A designated representative from each clinical commissioning group in Lincolnshire 
A designated representative from the NHS Commissioning Board 
One designated District Council representative 
A designated representative of Healthwatch 
The Police and Crime Commissioner for Lincolnshire 
The Chairman of the Lincolnshire Coordination Board 
 
Functions 
 

 To encourage persons who arrange for the provision of any health and social care 
services in the area to work in an integrated manner 

 To provide such advice, assistance or other support as it thinks appropriate for the 
purpose of encouraging joint commissioning 

 To prepare and publish a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
 To prepare and publish a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

 
Quorum 
 
One third of the membership of the Board to include a representative from the clinical 
commissioning groups, a Lincolnshire County Council Executive Councillor and either the 
Chairman or the Vice-Chairman. 
 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman 
 
The Board shall elect its Chairman and Vice Chairman at its AGM. 
 
Voting 
 
Each member of the Board shall have one vote and decisions will be made by a simple 
majority.  The Chairman will have the casting vote. 
 
Substitutes 
 
Each member of the Board can nominate a named substitute.  Two working days advanced 
notice that a substitute member can attend a meeting of the Board will be given to the 
Democratic Services Manager.  Substitute members will have the same powers as Board 
Members. 

Page 157



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 

 

Report Reference: 0.0 
 
 

 

LINCOLNSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

Open Report on behalf of Tony McGinty, Interim Director of Public Health 

 

Report to 
 
Date: 
 
Subject:  

Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
5 December 2017 
 
Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board Membership 
Review 

 

Summary:  
At the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) meeting on 20 June 2017 it was agreed that a 
review of the Board's membership should be undertaken to ensure the right representation 
is in place to drive forward the new Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, and to take 
account of wider developments across the local health and care system.   
 
It was agreed that a paper setting out the proposed changes arising from the review be 
brought to this meeting of the Board for approval, and that following this, any revisions to 
membership requiring a change to Lincolnshire County Council's Constitution should go 
forward to Full Council for approval in early 2018. 
 

 

Actions Required:  
The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to: 
 

1. Endorse the membership changes recommended by the Working Group in section 
1.5 on page 4 of this report. 
 

2. Agree the proposed recommendations are formally submitted to Full Council in early 
2018 to enable the appropriate changes to be made to the County Council's 
Constitution. 

 

 
 
 

Page 159



 

1. Background 
 
1.1 Statutory Context 
Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012, all upper tier and unitary local authorities are 
required to establish a Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) for its area.  In 2013, the HWB 
was formally established as a committee of Lincolnshire County Council.  The functions of 
the HWB are set out in Sections 195 and 196 of the Act as follows: 

 to encourage persons who arrange for the provision of any health and social care 
services in the area to work in an integrated manner; 

 to provide advice, assistance or other support, as it thinks appropriate, for the purpose 
of encouraging joint commissioning; 

 to prepare and publish a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) on the local 
population; 

 to prepare and publish a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS); 

 to receive the commissioning plans for the Clinical Commissioning Groups – this 
includes involvement in preparing the plans and ensuring that they take account of the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
In addition to the statutory functions listed above, the Act also makes provision for the 
local authority to delegate any powers or functions exercisable by the authority to the 
Board. 
 
The Health and Social Care Act 2012 states the statutory core membership of the HWB is 
to consist of: 

 at least one Councillor of the local authority 

 the Director of Adult Social Services for the local authority 

 the Director of Children's Services for the local authority 

 the Director of Public Health for the local authority 

 a representative of the Local Healthwatch organisation for the area of the local 
authority 

 a representative of each relevant Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

 such other persons, or representative of such other persons, as the local authority 
thinks appropriate 

 
Non statutory members to the Board will be directly appointed to the HWB by the 
statutory elected member (Leader of the Council).  Additional members may be appointed 
to the Board as it thinks appropriate at any point.  Before any new member is appointed to 
the Board, however, the HWB must be consulted. 
 
The current membership and functions of the HWB, as detailed in the Council's 
Constitution, is presented in Appendix A. 
 
At the Board meeting in June 2017, the HWB agreed to undertake a review of its 
membership to ensure the Board is engaging the right stakeholders to enable it to be the 
key driving force for health and care integration.  The context for the review is: 

 national policy requiring closer integration 

 the emerging Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy  

 the relationship and linkages with the Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) 

 the establishment of the Housing, Health and Care Delivery Group 
 
 

Page 160



 

1.2 Review Process 
 
In consultation with the Chairman of the Board, a three stage approach to the review as 
adopted: 
 
Aug 2017 Desktop research to review different membership models from other 

HWBs.  Consideration was given to work undertaken by the Local 
Government Association (LGA) into what makes a good HWB, with a 
specific focus on HWB areas that have completed a LGA Peer Review. 
 

Sept 2017 HWB members were asked to submit their views on whether the HWB 
membership should be extended or refreshed. 
 

Oct 2017 Working group convened to consider the findings of the desktop 
research and the views of HWB members.  Recommendations on a 
suggested way forward to be made to the HWB meeting in December 
2017. 

 
1.3 Desktop Research 
Nine HWB identified by the LGA as 'best practice' were reviewed, however, only two of 
examples were two tier areas therefore four neighbouring HWB areas in the East 
Midlands were also considered. Key themes from the research: 

 Whilst each HWB's membership reflects local circumstances and priorities there 
are some commonalities, for example: 

o Many HWB memberships have developed beyond the statutory minimum to 
include organisations involved in the wider determinant aspects of health 
and wellbeing. 

o The majority of HWBs now include the Police and Crime Commissioner 
(PCC)/Police. 

o A number of HWBs have opted to extend membership by including non-
voting representatives – the advantage of this approach is they are able to 
take part in the discussions to help shape the direction but are not part of 
the final decision making.  

 The number of members sitting on the HWB varies from 29 to 9, but the average 
number is 19 members. 

 
1.4 Feedback from HWB Members 
Five responses were received from HWB members and key themes from the feedback 
are: 

 Refresh the membership rather than extend. 

 Need to limit the number of board members so that the HWB does not become too 
big and unwieldy. 

 Strong support for the inclusion of the PCC. 

 Advantage having strong GP/Clinical representation although health representation 
on the HWB needs to be reconsidered to take account of a number of changes in 
the health system, most notably now having only one representative for both South 
and South West CCGs and the relationship with the STP. 

 The number of County Councillors on the Board needs to be reviewed. 

 A request from District Councils for an additional place on the HWB. 
 
 

Page 161



 

1.5 Recommendations of the Working Group 
The Working Group, made up of representation from the County Council, CCGs and 
District Councils, met on 31 October 2017 to consider the findings.  The 
recommendations from the Working Group are to extend core membership to: 
 

 the Police and Crime Commissioner to enable closer joint working on key areas 
such as mental health, and 

 the Chairman of the Lincolnshire Coordination Board to strengthen the links with 
the STP.   

 
Discussions are still ongoing regarding wider changes to the overall composition of 
Board's membership. 
 
 
2. Conclusion 
At a previous meeting the Board agreed to review its membership to ensure the right 
representation is in place to drive forward the new Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, 
and to take account of wider developments across the local health and care system.  In 
line with statutory requirements, the review has sought the views of current HWB 
members and any subsequent changes endorsed by the Board will be submitted to Full 
Council for formal approval. 
 
 
3. Consultation 
 
In line with the requirements of the Health and Care Act 2012, Members of the HWB were 
consulted as part of the review process. 
 
4. Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Exact from Lincolnshire's County Council's Constitution – Lincolnshire 
Health and Wellbeing Board 

 
 
5. Background Papers 
 

Document How it can be accessed 

Lincolnshire County 
Council Constitution 

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/local-democracy/how-the-council-
works/the-constitution/ 
 

Health and Social Care 
Act 2012 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/7/contents/enacted 
 

 
This report was written by Alison Christie, Programme Manager Health and Wellbeing, 
who can be contacted on 01522 552322 or alison.christie@lincolnshire.gov.uk  

 
 

Page 162

https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/local-democracy/how-the-council-works/the-constitution/
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/local-democracy/how-the-council-works/the-constitution/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/7/contents/enacted
mailto:alison.christie@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 

 
County Council 

 

Open Report on behalf of Richard Wills, Executive Director Environment 
and Economy 

 

Report to: County Council 

Date: 23 February 2018 

Subject: Members' Allowances Scheme 2018/19 

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

The Council has to agree its Members' Allowances Scheme every year. This 
report presents the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel 
(IRP) convened in 2018 and a revised Scheme of Members' Allowances for 
2018/19 that implements relevant recommendations. 
 
 

Recommendation(s): 

1. To consider the IRP report and recommendations. 
 

2. To agree or amend the proposed Scheme of Members' Allowances for 
2018/19 

 

 
1. Background 
 
The County Council sets a Scheme of Members' Allowances and expenses in 
accordance with the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) 
Regulations 2003 (‘the 2003 Regulations’) and other relevant legislation. 
 
The 2003 Regulations require that an Independent Review Panel (IRP) is 
convened to make recommendations to the Council.  The Council is required to 
consider any IRP report and recommendations before setting a scheme but is not 
required to accept their recommendations. 
 
The IRP was convened in January 2018 and their report, findings and 
recommendations are attached in Appendix A. 
 
Council must vote to adopt a Scheme each year.  If the recommendations here are 
agreed then the vote for each of the next three years could, for example, be to 
simply applying the indexing provisions contained within it.  The regulations 
stipulate that agreed indexing provisions can only be implemented for a maximum 
of four years before they must be reviewed.   
 

Page 163

Agenda Item 10



 

The table below shows the IRP recommendations and actions and how they have 
been incorporated into a draft Scheme of Allowances for 2018-19 attached as 
Appendix B. 
 

IRP 2018 Recommendation Action taken / needed 

The IRP recommends that the Members' 
Allowances Scheme continues to be 
linked to the average % increase in pay 
for employees covered by the National 
Joint Council for Local Government 
Services for the last 12 months.   
 

None as index-linking already included.  

Based on the evidence presented the 
IRP considers the role of Council Chief 
Whip to be a senior one within the 
Council ranks and recommends that this 
is reflected in the establishment of a 
new Allowance Band equating to an 
annual Special Responsibility Allowance 
of £10,000. On a point of administration 
the IRP also recommends that the 
Allowance Bands quoted within the 
Members’ Allowances Scheme are 
consequently renumbered to reflect the 
inclusion of this new Band.     
 

Recommended change incorporated in 
draft Scheme 

Given the significant contribution that 
good quality learning and development 
opportunities makes to the ultimate 
success of an organisation the IRP 
recommends that a Special 
Responsibility Allowance should be 
applied to the role of Chairman of the 
Councillor Development Group  and that 
this should be at the current Allowance 
Band 8 equating currently to £4,170.25.  
 

Recommended change incorporated in 
draft Scheme 

The IRP recognises the importance of 
the Health and Wellbeing Board, its 
contribution to the local health 
community and the formal decision-
making nature of its responsibilities. It is 
therefore recommended that a Special 
Responsibility Allowance at Band 4 
should be applied to the role of 
Chairman and a Special Responsibility 
Allowance at Band 9 should be applied 
to the role of Vice-Chairman of the 
Health and Wellbeing Board.      
 

Recommended changes incorporated in 
draft Scheme 

Page 164



 

In addition to the recommendations of the IRP, two further amendments are 
proposed to the Members' Allowances Scheme. Firstly, reference to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme has been deleted as councillors are no longer 
eligible to be members of the Scheme and, secondly, reference to provision of 
home printing equipment and support has also been deleted as this is no longer 
provided.      
 
2. Legal Issues: 
 
Equality Act 2010 

Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Council must, in the exercise of its 
functions, have due regard to the need to: 

*           Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under the Act 

*           Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 

*           Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 

The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender reassignment; 
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; and sexual orientation 

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to: 

*           Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic 

*           Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it 

*           Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by such 
persons is disproportionately low 

The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from 
the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take 
account of disabled persons' disabilities 

Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to tackle prejudice, and promote 
understanding 

Compliance with the duties in section 149 may involve treating some persons more 
favourably than others 

The duty cannot be delegated and must be discharged by the decision-maker.  To 
discharge the statutory duty the decision-maker must analyse all the relevant 
material with the specific statutory obligations in mind.  If a risk of adverse impact is 
identified consideration must be given to measures to avoid that impact as part of 
the decision making process 

Page 165



 

 The decision to adopt the Members Allowances Scheme enhances equality of 
opportunity, as it enables more people to stand as councillors. 

 

Joint Strategic Needs Analysis (JSNA and the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(JHWS) 

The Council must have regard to the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 
and the Joint Health & Well Being Strategy (JHWS) in coming to a decision 

There are no implications for the JSNA or JHWS in relation to approval of this 
Scheme 

 

Crime and Disorder 

Under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council must exercise its 
various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those 
functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and 
disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour adversely affecting 
the local environment), the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its 
area and re-offending in its area 

 

3. Conclusion
 
The Council is required to convene the IRP and has done so.  The IRP has made 
recommendations that the Council must take into account when setting a Scheme 
of Members' Allowances. 
 
 

4. Legal Comments: 
 

Regulation 10 of the Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) 
Regulations 2003 requires the Council to make a Scheme of Members 
Allowances prior to April 1 in every year. 
 
Before making such a Scheme the Council must have regard to the 
recommendations made in relation to the Scheme by the Independent 
Remuneration Panel. 
 
Approval of the Scheme of Members' Allowances is reserved to full Council. 
 

 
 
 
 

There are no implications in relation to Crime and Disorder from approval of this 
Scheme 

Page 166



 

5. Resource Comments: 
 

The costs arising from acceptance of the recommendations in this report can be 
funded from within the existing budget provision. 
 

 
 
6. Consultation 

 
a)  Has Local Member Been Consulted? 

 N/A 
 

b)  Has Executive Councillor Been Consulted?  

 N/A 

c)  Scrutiny Comments 

N/A 
 
 

 
 

d)  Have Risks and Impact Analysis been carried out? 

No 

e)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

N/A 
 

 
7. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A IRP Report and Recommendations 

Appendix B Proposed Scheme of Members' Allowances 2018/19 

 
 

8. Background Papers 
 
 
No background papers within Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
This report was written by Nigel West, who can be contacted on 01522 552840 or 
nigel.west@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

LCC Independent Remuneration Panel Recommendations for 2018 onwards

Purpose

The County Council has commissioned the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) to make 
recommendations for 2018 onwards as required by relevant legislation - the Local Authorities 
(Members’ Allowances) Regulations 1991, and the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) 
(England) Regulations 2001 and 2003.  This paper sets out the IRP's findings and recommendations 
to the County Council. 

Background

A full review of the Members' Allowances Scheme was last conducted in 2014. However, the IRP was 
also convened in 2017 to consider the new roles of Chairman and Vice-Chairman of Scrutiny Panels 
and to agree on recommendations relating to the allocation and level of Special Responsibility 
Allowances for these roles following a recent review of the Council's scrutiny structure.    

Following two IRP resignations, a recruitment process was undertaken towards the end of 2017 to 
recruit to these positions and bring the Panel back up to its full complement of five members. Two 
candidates were selected and were confirmed by the meeting of the County Council on 15th 
December 2017. 

Allowances for 2018-19

Approach

The IRP met informally during December to consider the upcoming Review and to determine how it 
would be conducted. It was agreed that the views of serving councillors should be sought on the 
suitability of the current scheme and that these views should be elicited either via e-mail to a 
dedicated IRP e-mail account or through face-to-face interview.  Councillors were duly contacted 
and invited to contribute. 

On 9th and 10th January 2018 the IRP was convened at the County Offices in Lincoln to undertake its 
review including the consideration of written submissions from councillors, the undertaking of face-
to-face interviews with councillors and discussions with relevant officers of the Council. The IRP was 
also able to consider the content of role descriptions that had previously been produced for all those 
roles attracting a Special Responsibility Allowance.  

Based on the evidence and information presented to it, the IRP considered a number of specific 
areas in detail. The key elements of these discussions and, where applicable, any formal 
recommendation, are outlined by section below. 

Index-linking of allowances  

The Panel reflected on the current level of the Basic Allowance of £10,425.50 and on the index- 
linking that had previously been recommended and agreed by the County Council. The IRP noted 
that the current index-linking for basic allowances, special responsibility allowances and co-opted 
members’ allowances is the average % increase in pay for employees covered by the National 

Page 169



Joint Council for Local Government Services for the previous 12 months (usually referred to as 
'Green Book' employees). Following discussions with councillors, the IRP felt that although 
councillors and officers were acknowledged as separate entities, the two were intrinsically 
linked and there was no evidence to suggest that a change to the current 'green book' index-
linking was necessary.  

Recommendation 

The IRP recommends that the Members' Allowances Scheme continues to be linked to the 
average % increase in pay for employees covered by the National Joint Council for Local 
Government Services for the last 12 months.  

Recognition of travel time

During a number of the face-to-face interviews and included within two of the three written 
submissions there was reference to the extended travel time that some councillors were faced with 
to reach County Offices in Lincoln. It was observed that Lincolnshire was a large County and that 
those councillors living in or close to Lincoln could access County Offices relatively quicker than 
those councillors on the coast or in the north or south of the County. Some councillors could be 
faced with a round trip of three hours or more when visiting County Offices. 

The IRP heard differing opinions on the topic, with some councillors expressing a view that those 
living some distance away should be compensated for the additional time lost in travel. Other 
councillors felt that travel time was just another part of their councillor duty and that they had taken 
this issue into account before standing for election.  Based on the weight of evidence received the 
IRP was not inclined to propose any additional remuneration to compensate councillors for travel 
time. 

Council Chief Whip 

The Panel was advised that the Council's Monitoring Officer had recently reviewed the role 
description of the Council Chief Whip in light of a need for the activity of the post holder to 
transcend the traditional concept of instilling discipline amongst the membership.

The IRP was told about the sensitivity and cross-cutting nature of the role and that the Chief Whip 
was expected to work between the political groups to encourage a collaborative approach to 
achieve positive outcomes. The role was viewed as a political one but not always party political.

The broadening of the scope of the role has included leading on projects to benefit the whole 
Council, such as the revision of the petition scheme and the Council's approach to engagement with 
the community. The role now also includes attention to the wellbeing of councillors to ensure they 
are able to perform their role to the best of their abilities. 

Page 170



Recommendation

Based on the evidence presented the IRP considers the role of Council Chief Whip to be a senior 
one within the Council ranks and recommends that this is reflected in the establishment of a new 
Allowance Band equating to an annual Special Responsibility Allowance of £10,000. On a point of 
administration the IRP also recommends that the Allowance Bands quoted within the Members’ 
Allowances Scheme are consequently renumbered to reflect the inclusion of this new Band.    

Councillor Development Group Chairman 

The IRP considered the role of the Chairman of the Councillor Development Group and received 
evidence from senior councillors and relevant officers. The IRP was provided with detail of the 
oversight responsibilities of the Councillor Development Group and its pivotal role in co-ordinating 
all aspects of the development offer to councillors. It was established that the role of the Councillor 
Development Group had expanded over the last year to incorporate a significant e-learning package 
for councillors to help address the challenge of providing learning opportunities in a large county like 
Lincolnshire. 

The IRP recognised that the Chairman had an essential role to play in the success of the 
development offer and that the Chairman would be a key part of energising the membership and 
innovating different learning opportunities. 

Recommendation 

Given the significant contribution that good quality learning and development opportunities 
makes to the ultimate success of an organisation the IRP recommends that a Special Responsibility 
Allowance should be applied to the role of Chairman of the Councillor Development Group  and 
that this should be at the current Allowance Band 8 equating currently to £4,170.25. 

Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Health & Wellbeing Board 

During the current review it was recognised that a Special Responsibility Allowance had not been 
applied to the role of Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board. The Panel 
considered the role descriptions of both positions and considered evidence from councillors and 
officers in reaching its conclusion. 

Recommendation 

The IRP recognises the importance of the Health and Wellbeing Board, its contribution to the local 
health community and the formal decision-making nature of its responsibilities. It is therefore 
recommended that a Special Responsibility Allowance at Band 4 should be applied to the role of 
Chairman and a Special Responsibility Allowance at Band 9 should be applied to the role of Vice-
Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board.     

Page 171



Scrutiny Panels 

When setting the level of allowance for the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of Scrutiny Panels in 2017 
the IRP agreed that this decision would be reviewed within 12 months and to coincide with this 
wider review of the Members’ Allowances Scheme. Evidence was received from a number of 
councillors involved with the Scrutiny Panels about the activity undertaken to date and the 
significant response to the engagement over the Council's policy on street lighting across the 
County. Based on the evidence received the IRP is content to keep the allowances for Chairman and 
Vice-Chairman of Scrutiny Panels at the levels set in 2017. 

Other issues

The IRP received evidence regarding the role of Executive Support Councillors at the County Council. 
The IRP gained a greater understanding of the various facets of the role and how the role would be 
defined locally through agreement between each Executive Councillor and Executive Support 
Councillor. It was recognised as an important role and also one that could fluctuate between each 
incumbent in terms of profile, responsibility and activity dependent on the requirements of each 
portfolio. 

The Panel considered the role of Shadow Executive Councillor and its value to the Council. Members 
of the Panel felt the evidence presented did not warrant a change in this band of allowance.

During discussions the Panel considered the practice of limiting councillors to only one Special 
Responsibility Allowance.  It was agreed that retaining this limit enabled more councillors to have 
the opportunity to undertake additional duties on behalf of the Council. 

A revised Members' Allowances Scheme incorporating the recommendations of the IRP is attached 
to this report. 

The Independent Remuneration Panel:

Peter Clay (Chairman)

Colin Childs

Phillip Knowles 

John Marsh

Richard Quirk 

January 2018 

Page 172



 
 
 

APPENDIX B 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part 6 
 

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 173



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

6/2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 174



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

6/3 

Members’ Allowances and Travel and Subsistence Scheme 
 
General 
 
This Members’ Allowance Scheme for Lincolnshire County Council has been 
prepared in accordance with the Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) 
Regulations 2003 (‘the 2003 Regulations’) and other appropriate legislation.  In 
particular, the Scheme takes account of recommendations of an Independent 
Remuneration Panel reporting to Council in February 2018. 
 
This Scheme is effective from 1 April 2018. It is applicable to all elected Members of 
the County Council. Specific provisions relating to co-opted members are also 
included. 
 
Within the scheme: 
 

 ‘year’ refers to the financial year ending on the 31 March and  

 ‘day’ and ‘daily’ refers to a 24 hour period beginning at 3am 

 'approved duties' are those defined in Schedule 2 
 
An Elected Member who is a member of two separate authorities may not receive an 
allowance from each authority in respect of the same duties or for the same purpose. 
 
Administrative guidelines relating to Members allowances, travel and subsistence will 
be published separately. 
 
Members should initially seek advice from the Head of Democratic Services if 
necessary.  In all cases of interpreting this Scheme, the decision of the Monitoring 
Officer shall be final. 
 
Record of allowances 
 
The 2003 Regulations require the County Council to maintain records of payments 
made under this scheme specifying the name of the recipient of the payment, the 
amount and the nature of each payment. The records must be available for 
inspection at any reasonable time by members of the public. 
 
The 2003 Regulations also require annual publication of the total paid to each 
recipient for each of the types of allowance and expenses in this scheme. 
Lincolnshire County Council publishes these on our website. 
 
Government transparency legislation may require additional information regarding 
Members' allowances to be published. 
 

Page 175



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

6/4 

 
Allowances for Elected Members 
 
There is no power to pay an attendance allowance to Members. 
 
There are three types of Elected Members allowance in this Scheme: 
 
Basic Allowance payable to all Elected Members – see Schedule 1 for values. 
  
Special Responsibility Allowance payable in addition to those Elected Members who 
hold the posts shown in Schedule 1 to the values shown in that Schedule.  In the 
event of one Member holding more than one Special Responsibility post, only one 
Special Responsibility Allowance, whichever is the greater, will be paid.   
 
Childcare and Dependants' Carers’ Allowance payable in addition to reimburse 
Elected Members for the cost of caring for their children or dependent relatives whilst 
undertaking approved duties.  The maximum rate payable is set out in Schedule 1. 
 
Claims and payments  
 
Basic and Special Responsibility Allowances will normally be paid monthly into 
Members' bank accounts.  Such allowances are paid in respect of each year or part 
year.  For example, in the event of a Member giving up a Special Responsibility 
Allowance mid-year the part-year allowances are paid on a pro-rata daily basis for 
the period of a year to which they apply.  
 
Claims for travel and subsistence expenses and for Childcare and Dependant's 
Carer's Allowance should be supported by receipts and made in accordance with 
any guidance issued by the County Council.  Claims must normally be made within 
two months of the duty for which the claim is made. 
 
Renouncing allowances  
 
A Member may elect to forego any or all of their entitlement to any allowance under 
this Scheme.  Election must be made by written notice to the Head of Democratic 
Services and will continue until amended by a further notice.  
 
Travel and Subsistence Expenses 
 
Travel expenses incurred whilst on approved duties as defined in Schedule 2 will be 
paid in accordance with rates set out in Schedule 3.  
 
Subsistence expenses incurred whilst on approved duties as defined in Schedule 2 
will be paid in accordance with rates set out in Schedule 3 except that subsistence 

Page 176



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

6/5 

expenses will not be paid for 'County Councillors' activities within their Division 
including surgeries, formal meetings of any relevant Parish Council, Residents 
Association or similar organisation.' 
 
All reasonable steps should be taken to minimise the need to travel by using 
telephone or video conferencing, telephone or e-mail or by combining meetings at 
the same location. 
 
Suspension of Payments to Members  
 
The County Council has resolved to exercise the power available to it under the 
2003 Regulations to withdraw all allowances (including travel & subsistence) from 
any Member of the Council who has been or is in custody pursuant to a custodial 
sentence. 
 
In the event that any Member is in custody pursuant to a custodial sentence, their 
entitlement to allowances will cease from the point of conviction. Allowances will only 
recommence at a point when they are no longer in custody and are able to perform 
the full range of duties. No retrospective payment of allowances forgone will be 
made in any circumstances.  
 
Where payment of any allowance has already been made in respect of any period 
during which the member concerned ceases to be a member of the County Council; 
or is in any other way not entitled to receive the allowance in respect of that period, 
the County Council may require that such part of the allowance as relates to any 
such period be repaid to the County Council. 
 
 
Annual Increases (Indexing) of Allowances 
 
The County Council has resolved to exercise the power available to it under the 
2003 Regulations to increase allowances annually in line with the movement in an 
appropriate index.  
 
The index to be applied is the average % increase in pay for employees covered by 
the National Joint Council for Local Government Services for the previous 12 months 
(usually referred to as 'Green Book' employees).  
 
Indexation will be applied to the basic, special responsibility and co-opted members' 
allowances for the four-year period up to May 2022 unless the Council resolves 
otherwise. (The 2003 Regulations allow indexing for a maximum of four years but 
also require that Council votes to adopt a Scheme of Members' Allowances each 
year.) 
  

Page 177



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

6/6 

Backdating Of Allowances  
 
The County Council has resolved to adopt the backdating provisions in the 2003 
Regulations. 
 
Where an amendment is made which affects an allowance payable for the year in 
which the amendment is made, the amendment will apply from the beginning of the 
year in which the amendment is made or such later date as specified by the County 
Council. 
 
Co-opted Members Allowance  
 
The County Council has resolved to exercise the power available to it under the 
2003 Regulations to pay a co-optee’s allowance in respect of the attendance of 
individuals co-opted onto committees, sub-committees, working groups and scrutiny 
panels of the Council. The allowance will cover attendance at such meetings and 
any other activity arising directly from that role (e.g. seminars, conferences, training 
courses, etc.).  
 
The Co-opted Members Allowance is set out in Schedule 1. 
 
The Council Committees etc. relevant to this allowance are those set out in the 
Articles of the Constitution. 
 
Entitlement to this allowance will be restricted to co-optees who are not remunerated 
by way of an allowance, salary, etc. from another body as a direct result of their 
membership of the Committee in question. For example, a District Councillor 
representing that body would not qualify for this allowance. 
 
The allowance will be paid monthly and in the case of part year service, pro-rata to 
the service undertaken.  
 
Where a co-optee undertakes any role that would otherwise qualify for receiving a 
Special Responsibility Allowance set out in Schedule 1 they will receive the relevant 
Special Responsibility Allowance (but not the basic allowance) that would have been 
paid to an Elected Member discharging that role. In such circumstances the co-optee 
will not also receive the standard co-optees allowance for the period they are in 
receipt of the Special Responsibility Allowance.  
 
The provisions of this scheme relating to renunciation, travel and subsistence 
expenses, suspension of payments, annual increases and backdating also apply to 
the Co-opted Members Allowance. 
 
 

Page 178



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

6/7 

 
IT Related expenses 
 
The Council will facilitate use of Information Technology to assist Elected Members 
and Co-opted Members (Members) in their approved duties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 179



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

6/8 

Revised Schedule 1 – Allowances 
 
Responsibilities and allowances within bands 1-12 in the table below are 'Special 
Responsibility Allowances'. 
 
.  

Band Responsibility Allowance 

- Basic Allowance £10,529.76 

1 Leader of the Council £33,361.43 

2 Deputy Leader of the Council £21,893.39 

3 Members of the Executive £18,765.76 

4 

Chairman of the County Council 

£12,635.62 

Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee 

Chairman of the Health Scrutiny Committee for 
Lincolnshire 

Chairman of the Audit Committee 

Chairman of the Health & Well-Being Board 

5 Council Chief Whip £10,000.00 

6 

Chairmen of the Scrutiny Committees 

£9,476.77 
Chairman of the Planning & Regulation Committee 

Leader of the Opposition 

Chairman of the Pensions Committee 

7 
Executive Support Councillor 
Chairman of the Scrutiny Panels 

£8,340.42 

8 Minority Group Leaders  £5,212.79 

9 

Vice-Chairman of the County Council 

£4,211.95 

Vice-Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee 

Vice-Chairman of the Health Scrutiny Committee for 
Lincolnshire 

Vice-Chairman of the Health & Well-Being Board  

Vice-Chairman of the Audit Committee 

Chairman of the Definitive Map & Statement of 
Public Rights of Way Sub Committee 

Chairman of the Councillor Development Group  

10 

Vice-Chairmen of the Scrutiny Committees 

£3,158.97 
Vice-Chairman of the Planning & Regulation 
Committee 

Vice-Chairman of the Pensions Committee 

11 Vice-Chairman of the Scrutiny Panels £2,780.14 

Page 180



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

6/9 

Band Responsibility Allowance 

12 

Vice-Chairman of the Definitive Map & Statement of 
Public Rights of Way Sub Committee £1,052.99 

Member of the Shadow Executive 

- 

Childcare and dependants' carers' allowance 
 
The Monitoring Officer has discretion to increase 
the rate in particular cases of need. 

An hourly 
rate 
equivalent to 
the National 
Minimum 
Wage for the 
time being 

- Co-opted Member £781.97 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 181



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

6/10 

Schedule 2 – Approved Duties 
 
The 2003 Regulations specify the circumstances in which dependant's carer's 
allowance travel and subsistence expenses may be paid.  These are all 
encompassed in the definition of 'approved duties' below. 
 
Approved duties are duties undertaken in exercise of the role of County Councillor 
 
That includes, but is not limited to: 
 

 Meetings of, and activities related to, the County Council, any of its 
Committees, Executive functions or any bodies of which the County Council is 
a Member or appoints members 

 Any legislative requirement for Members to be present 

 Any Standing Orders of the County Council 

 The exercise of any function of the County Council 

 Any meeting where two or more political groups are invited by an Officer 

 Any meeting where one political group is invited by the Chief Executive or an 
Executive Director 

 County Councillors' activities within their Division including surgeries, formal 
meetings of any relevant Parish Council, Residents Association or similar 
organisation 

 
Meetings and other activities related to the management or operation of any political 
group or political party are not approved duties. 

Page 182



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

6/11 

 
Schedule 3 - Travelling & Subsistence and Other Allowances  
 
Public Transport  
 
Travel by public transport should be made at the lowest rate available for the 
journey(s) in question. 
 
Air travel, foreign travel and, in exceptional cases, travel at rates higher than lowest 
available fares should be approved in advance by the Head of Democratic Services.  
 
Travel costs will be reimbursed at the actual cost incurred with claims supported by 
receipts. 
 
Members are encouraged to order tickets for travel by public transport through their 
administrative support who will use the County Council's travel procurement 
arrangements to secure good value for money that will normally be paid direct by the 
County Council. 
 
Private vehicles and car parking 
 
Rates payable for travel by a private vehicle used by a Member and for official 
passengers will be those equivalent to HM Revenue & Customs Approved Mileage 
Rates for the time being.  Rates and changes in rates will be notified to Members. 
 
Members are responsible for ensuring that private vehicles used by them comply 
with all relevant legislation for the purposes for which they are used including safety, 
taxation and insurance. 
 
Car parking will be reimbursed at the actual cost incurred with claims supported by 
receipts. 
 
Taxis  
 
In cases of urgency, or where no public transport is reasonably available, Members 
may travel by taxi and claim the amount of the actual cost incurred, supported by 
receipts.  
 
Subsistence Expenses  
 
In cases where the County Council provides a meal no other meal allowance will be 
paid. On County Council meeting days Members will be provided with a lunch in the 
County Restaurant and will consequently not be entitled to claim expenses. 
 

Page 183



 

 
 
 
 
 

 

6/12 

In other cases, the County Council will reimburse reasonable costs of meals incurred 
whilst undertaking approved duties except that subsistence expenses will not be paid 
for 'County Councillors' activities within their Division including surgeries, meetings of 
any relevant Parish Council, Residents Association or similar organisation.' 
 
Claims must be for actual costs incurred supported by receipts. 
 
Overnight accommodation should be booked in advance on behalf of the Member by 
their administrative support using the County Council's standard procurement 
arrangements to secure best value for money that will normally be paid direct by the 
County Council. 
 
In cases where a Member incurs reasonable costs for overnight accommodation, it 
will be reimbursed at actual cost incurred with claims supported by receipts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 184



 

      
County Council 

 

Open Report on behalf of Debbie Barnes, Executive Director for Children's 
Services  

 

Report to: County Council 

Date: 23 February 2018 

Subject: Pay Policy Statement  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

The Localism Act 2011 requires all local authorities to agree pay policy 
statements, which are compliant with the provisions of the Act, annually at a Full 
Council meeting and then subsequently to publish them. 
 
The Council is requested to note that with regard to pay levels, national pay 
awards are awaited in respect of the JNC for Chief Executives, Chief Officers 
and the NJC for Local Government Services. 
 
The Council is also requested to note that that the pay policy has been updated to 
reflect: 
 

 Recruitment, Retention and Market Force Supplements renamed Attraction 
and Retention Payments (paragraph 8) 

 Pay Progression updated to reflect new Performance & Development 
Appraisal process implemented January 2018 (paragraph 12) 

 Pay Multiples between the salary of the highest paid employee and the 
median full time equivalent salary remains the same as previous year 
(paragraph 25) 

 Personal Service Contracts in relation to off-payroll working in the Public 
Sector (IR35) (paragraph 28) 

 Gender Pay Gap Information requirements (paragraph 29) 
 
 
 

Recommendation(s): 

The recommendation of the Pay Policy Sub-Committee is that Full Council 
approves the Pay Policy Statement at Appendix A. 

 

 
1. Background
 
The requirements for Councils formally to adopt Pay Policy Statements was 
introduced in the Localism Act 2011, followed by guidance from DCLG.  In line with 
this guidance it is considered good practice for the Pay-Policy Sub-Committee to 

Page 185

Agenda Item 11



 

consider the Statement before it is presented to Full Council for approval.  The 
Statement itself has been prepared in line with the requirements of the legislation 
and the best practice put forward in the guidance. 
 
2. Conclusion
 
The Pay Policy Statement sets out the County Council's policy on pay and 
conditions for senior managers and employees (excluding operational fire fighters 
and schools based employees).  This ensures the Council has a fair and 
transparent approach to these matters. 
 
 

3. Legal Comments: 
 

The Council is required to publish its Pay Policy Statement annually under section 
38 of the Localism Act 2011 and to have regard to Guidance in developing that 
Pay Policy Statement. 
 
Approval of the Pay Policy Statement is reserved in law to the full Council 
 

 

4. Resource Comments: 
 

This Policy ensures that all senior managers and employees are treated fairly and 
transparently and can be funded from within existing Council budget. 
 

 
 
5. Consultation 

 
a)  Has Local Member Been Consulted? 

n/a 
 

b)  Has Executive Councillor Been Consulted?  

Yes 

c)  Scrutiny Comments 

The approval of the Pay Policy Statement is a decision for Full Council to make 
under the legislation. It has not been considered by a Scrutiny Committee but 
has been considered by the Pay Policy Sub-Committee 

 

 

 
 

d)  Policy Proofing Actions Required 

n/a 
 

 

6. Appendices 

 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Pay Policy Statement 

Page 186



 

7. Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 
were relied upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Employment Manual http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-
manual 
 

 
 
This report was written by Fiona Thompson, who can be contacted on 01522 
552207 or fiona.thompson@lincolnshire.gov.uk  
 

 

Page 187

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual
mailto:fiona.thompson@lincolnshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Employment Manual

PAY POLICY 
STATEMENT

For year 2018/2019
People Management Service

Page 189



CONTENTS
1 INTRODUCTION..................................................................................................1
2 KEY PRINCIPLES FOR PAY POLICY..............................................................1
3 EMPLOYEES IN SCOPE OF THE PAY POLICY STATEMENT.......................1
4 THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT PAY STRUCTURE ..........................................1

Chief Executive and Executive Directors .....................................................1
Senior Leadership........................................................................................1
Fire & Rescue Service Management Team .................................................2

5 OTHER EMPLOYEES’ PAY STRUCTURE ......................................................2
6 NON-STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS................................................2
7 THE NATIONAL PAY AWARD..........................................................................2
8 ATTRACTION AND RETENTION PAYMENTS ................................................3
9 RELOCATION EXPENSES AND DISTURBANCE ALLOWANCES .................3
10 STARTING PAY ................................................................................................3
11 PERFORMANCE RELATED PAY (PRP) AND “EARN BACK” .........................3
12 PAY PROGRESSION .......................................................................................3
13 REVIEWING INDIVIDUAL PERFORMANCE....................................................4
14 RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEWING PERFORMANCE..................................4
15 ACTING UP ARRANGEMENTS .......................................................................4
16 HONORARIA.....................................................................................................4
17 EMPLOYEES ON FIXED TERM/TEMPORARY CONTRACTS........................5
18 ALLOWANCES/EXPENSES .............................................................................5

Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Senior Leadership......................5
Fire & Rescue Service Senior Managers.....................................................5

19 SALARY PROTECTION....................................................................................5
20 SEVERANCE PAYMENTS ...............................................................................5
21 PAYMENTS FOR RETURNING OFFICERS DURING LOCAL ELECTIONS ...5
22 PAY POLICY SUB-COMMITTEE......................................................................6
23 LCC GREEN BOOK NEGOTIATING TEAM .....................................................6
24 RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN SENIOR OFFICERS PAY AND CONDITIONS 

WITH OTHER OFFICERS ................................................................................6
25 PAY MULTIPLES (or pay dispersion) ...............................................................6
26 RE-ENGAGEMENT OF FORMER SENIOR MANAGERS................................6
27 THE USE OF CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES AND APPOINTMENT OF 

CONSULTANTS................................................................................................7
28 PERSONAL SERVICE CONTRACTS...............................................................8
29 GENDER PAY GAP INFORMATION ................................................................8
APPENDIX A................................................................................................................9

Senior Manager Pay Structure – from April 2017 ........................................9
APPENDIX B .............................................................................................................12
APPENDIX C .............................................................................................................14

Glossary of Terms......................................................................................14

Page 190



1 INTRODUCTION

This Pay Policy Statement sets out Council policy on pay and conditions for senior 
managers and employees (excluding operational Fire Fighters and schools’ based 
employees) for 2018-19.

The Council aims to attract and retain employees to deliver the Council’s objectives.  In 
determining pay policy for senior managers and all other employees, the Council is 
committed to ensuring a fair and transparent approach. Within this, it is recognised that 
different approaches may be required between groups of employees reflecting factors such 
as difficulties in attracting and retaining key skills.

2 KEY PRINCIPLES FOR PAY POLICY
 To be fair, reasonable and transparent
 To be affordable
 To reward employees for their contribution to the Council’s achievements
 To maintain rates of pay which are both competitive in the market place and reflect the 

need to retain key skills

3 EMPLOYEES IN SCOPE OF THE PAY POLICY STATEMENT
This Pay Policy Statement covers all employees (except teachers and uniformed fire 
fighters except those defined as Senior Managers.)  As such, it goes wider than minimum 
legal requirements of the Localism Act 2011.

4 THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT PAY STRUCTURE
Senior Managers are defined for this purpose as the Chief Executive; Executive Directors – 
(referred to as Chief Officers);  Chief Fire Officer, Deputy Chief Fire Officer, Assistant Chief 
Fire Officer and Senior Leadership Pay Band. The senior pay structure is attached at 
Appendix A.

Chief Executive and Executive Directors
Remuneration is determined by the Pay Policy Sub-Committee and is based on salary 
comparison against similar posts in other Shire Counties in the Eastern and Midlands 
region, against the market place and taking into account information from the annual 
benchmarking exercise with Korn Ferry Hay. The aim is to ensure the Council retains and 
motivates key employees by maintaining rates of around median pay which are both 
competitive in the market place and reflect the need to retain key skills. The Chief Executive 
post is paid on a spot salary1.  Executive Director posts are all paid at the same single spot 
salary point because all roles have collective responsibility for the success of all service 
areas and for the Council as a whole.

Senior Leadership
Remuneration is determined by the Head of Paid Service and underpinned by the Hay Job 
Evaluation Scheme.  Employees will be appraised in line with agreed objectives.  
Periodically the pay structure will be reviewed to ensure that salaries offered are 
competitive in the market place, taking into account the advice set out in the Joint 
Negotiating Committee2 (JNC) for Chief Officers of Local Authorities Conditions of Service.

1 See Glossary Page 12
2 See Glossary Page 12

Page 191



Fire & Rescue Service Management Team
The pay structure is determined in line with the NJC for Brigade Managers (Gold Book3) 
with the Deputy Chief Fire Officer and Assistant Chief Fire Officer receiving 80% and 75% 
respectively of the Chief Fire Officer salary.

In accordance with the 2011 Code of Recommended Practice for Local Authorities on Data 
Transparency, information on senior salaries is published on the Council’s website - Data 
on Senior Salaries together with information about the structure of the workforce.  
Additional legal provisions about reporting payments over £50,000 in a year are in the 
Accounts & Audit (England) Regulations5, also available in the Council’s published 
accounts on our website: Statement of Accounts 2016/17.

5 OTHER EMPLOYEES’ PAY STRUCTURE
(including lowest paid employees4)

Remuneration for other employees is normally determined by the Council’s Job Evaluation 
(JE) Scheme5 which covers all staff on NJC Local Government Services terms and 
conditions of service.  This includes the lowest paid council employees.  The Council Pay 
spine for staff up to and including Service Managers is attached at Appendices A and B.

The Pay and Grading structure used by the Council was implemented by Collective 
Agreement6 in July 2008, backdated to be effective from 1 April 2007 and is anchored to 
the national NJC pay spine for Local Government Services.  The JE Scheme, the Greater 
London Provincial Council Scheme, was selected through a process of consultation with 
staff and Trade Unions and complies with equal pay requirements.

The Council and Unions signed a Collective Agreement in 2015 incorporating changes to 
modernise the local conventions for Job Evaluation. 

The Council has a locally determined Apprentice Rate which is a spot salary and is included 
in the Lincolnshire Payspine at Appendix B.

6 NON-STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Staff transferring into the Council under The Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE) arrangements, have the right to retain their existing 
terms and conditions. The largest group includes those staff who transferred from Public 
Health.

Additionally some specialist posts, mainly in education related services, such as 
Educational Psychologists and the Youth Service are recruited to specific terms and 
conditions although they are in scope of the Local Scheme of Conditions of Service. 

3 See Glossary Page 12
4 The Council's definition of "lowest-paid employee" is an employee paid at SCP1 on the Pay Spine attached 
at Appendix B.  The reason for adopting this definition is that SCP1 represents the lowest FTE salary paid by 
the Council. 
5 The Job Evaluation scheme ensures that all jobs are graded fairly and equitably between men and women
6 A Collective Agreement is a formal agreement signed between the County Council and the recognised 
Trade Unions

Page 192

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/local-democracy/information-governance/freedom-of-information/senior-management-salaries/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/local-democracy/information-governance/freedom-of-information/senior-management-salaries/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/local-democracy/how-the-council-works/finances/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/terms-and-conditions/local-scheme-of-conditions-of-service/59080.article


7 THE NATIONAL PAY AWARD
Pay levels are adjusted to take account of any cost of living increase negotiated nationally 
by the JNC for Local Authority Chief Executives7; the JNC for Chief Officers of Local 
Authorities and the NJC for Local Government Services. The pay rates in Appendix A were 
adjusted to reflect the 1% national pay award for 2017 (NB: the percentage increases apply 
to individual salaries as well as pay points).  The pay rates in respect of the NJC for Local 
Government Services in Appendix B are adjusted to reflect the 1% national pay award for 
2017.

8 ATTRACTION AND RETENTION PAYMENTS
The Council recognises that at times it may be difficult to recruit new employees or retain 
existing staff in key posts.  To ensure the Council attracts and retains a skilled and 
experienced workforce, salary supplements may be paid in addition to the post grade.  
Further details can be found in the Attraction and Retention Payments Procedure.

9 RELOCATION EXPENSES AND DISTURBANCE ALLOWANCES
Relocation Expenses and Disturbance Payments are paid to employees to cover additional 
costs they may incur as a result of a change or disturbance to work base.  These are paid 
in accordance with the Relocation Expenses and Change of Workbase Policy.

10 STARTING PAY
Employees, when appointed to posts within the Council are paid on an incremental scale 
and will normally be appointed at the minimum point of the pay grade for that post.  
However, in certain circumstances it may be appropriate to appoint to a higher point within 
the pay grade.  This should be objectively justifiable and have regard to the pay of existing 
employees within the service area.  See Green Book Employees Pay and Conditions 
Policy.

It is also necessary to be aware of any restrictions to this, e.g. the requirement of a 
qualification which prevents this normal sequence of events from occurring.

Where an employee is appointed who does not yet meet the minimum competency 
requirements for that role, they are appointed in accordance with the Appointed One Point 
Below Policy.

11 PERFORMANCE RELATED PAY (PRP) AND “EARN BACK”
There is a performance related pay framework for employees in scope of Senior Leadership 
Pay Band. 

12 PAY PROGRESSION
The Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Fire & Rescue Senior Managers are excluded 
from this scheme within the Council.  They are appointed to a spot salary so no pay 
progression applies.

For other employees, from January 2018 all performance and development appraisal 
reviews will include a rating of the employee's performance.  This rating will be used to 
inform incremental pay progression decisions (award of scale points) for employees on 
GLPC grades, which will be applicable from 1 April 2019.

7 See Glossary Page 12

Page 193

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/terms-and-conditions/local-scheme-of-conditions-of-service/59080.article
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/recruitment-selection-and-induction/attraction-and-retention-policy-and-procedure/59073.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/recruitment-selection-and-induction/relocation-expenses-and-disturbance-allowance-policy-and-procedure/59070.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/pay-allowances-and-benefits/pay-and-grading-policy-and-procedure/101147.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/pay-allowances-and-benefits/pay-and-grading-policy-and-procedure/101147.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/pay-allowances-and-benefits/appointing-%E2%80%98one-point-below%E2%80%99/76957.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/pay-allowances-and-benefits/appointing-%E2%80%98one-point-below%E2%80%99/76957.article


The expected minimum level of performance for all employees is an overall performance 
and development appraisal rating of successful (i.e. 3) The impact of ratings on incremental 
pay progression will only affect employees who are on GLPC grades and is not applicable 
to employees who transferred into LCC under TUPE legislation and remain on the terms 
and conditions of their previous organisation.   

For those on GLPC grades it will only affect those who have not reached the top of their 
current GLPC scale as at 31st March 2019.  

The pay of employees who are at the top scale point of their GPLC grade will not be 
affected.

To be eligible for a pay progression increment, employees must achieve an overall 
performance and development appraisal rating of successful or above. (i.e. 3 or above).

For other employees, eligibility for incremental progression will be in accordance with the 
Green Book Employees Pay and Conditions Policy covering the NJC for Local Government 
Services Group.

A pay increment may be withheld following an adverse report on an employee’s 
performance (subject to the Council’s capability / disciplinary procedures being followed).  

Any pay increments withheld may subsequently be paid if the employee’s performance 
becomes satisfactory, but are not backdated.

13 REVIEWING INDIVIDUAL PERFORMANCE
Individual achievement is assessed using the Council’s Appraisal Scheme and all 
employees will take part in an appraisal process.  In most cases this will be the full Council 
appraisal process; however, there may be some cases where the process is amended so 
that it is appropriate to the role of the employee.

Learning and development needs will be linked to the County Council's Core Values & 
Behaviours Framework which are interchangeable with occupational national standards of 
competence where appropriate.

14 RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEWING PERFORMANCE
The Chief Executive’s individual performance will be assessed by the Leader of the Council 
together with the appointed cross-party group.  For individual Executive Directors, the 
assessment will be made by the Chief Executive and reported to the cross-party group.

For all other employees, the assessment will be made by the individual’s line manager, as 
appropriate.

15 ACTING UP ARRANGEMENTS
Employees temporarily acting up into a role which is normally graded on a higher level 
should be paid at the appropriate level for the duties they are asked to perform.  Further 
details can be found in the Council’s Green Book Employees Pay and Conditions Policy 
covering the NJC for Local Government Services Group.

16 HONORARIA
An honorarium payment may be made for exceptional or special work undertaken on a 
short term basis of not more than 6 months and will be in accordance with the Council’s 

Page 194

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/pay-allowances-and-benefits/pay-and-grading-policy-and-procedure/101147.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/employee-appraisal-and-development/appraisal-policy-and-procedure/
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/employee-appraisal-and-development/bringing-the-values-to-life-behaviours-framework/113085.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/employee-appraisal-and-development/bringing-the-values-to-life-behaviours-framework/113085.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/pay-allowances-and-benefits/pay-and-grading-policy-and-procedure/101147.article


Green Book Employees Pay and Conditions Policy covering the NJC for Local Government 
Services Group.

17 EMPLOYEES ON FIXED TERM/TEMPORARY CONTRACTS
The Council will not treat employees on fixed term or temporary contracts less favourably 
than employees on a permanent contract.  See Fixed Term and Temporary Contracts 
Policy and Procedure.

18 ALLOWANCES/EXPENSES

Chief Executive, Executive Directors and Senior Leadership
Allowances will be in accordance with the Local Scheme of Conditions of Service or jointly 
agreed schemes in Director Areas.  Business Travel will be reimbursed in accordance with 
the Travel Policy.  This policy applies to all staff in scope of the Local Scheme of Conditions 
of Service.

Fire & Rescue Service Senior Managers
Allowances and expenses will be in accordance with the NJC for Brigade Managers 
Conditions of Service and Service Order 198   - Pay and Allowances, available on George.

19 SALARY PROTECTION
Where an employee accepts a post on a lower grade as result of a restructuring or change 
in the workforce, personal salary protection will apply in accordance with the Local Scheme 
of Conditions of Service or Collective Agreement on Pay Protection for those in the Fire & 
Rescue Service, available on George.

20 SEVERANCE PAYMENTS
For those in the Local Government Pension Scheme, (including Chief Officers) payments 
relating to redundancy and  early retirement  will be paid in accordance with the Council’s 
Redundancy and Early Retirement Policy or Flexible Retirement Policy.

All employees / recruits (including Chief Officers) in receipt of a redundancy payment will be 
subject to the Redundancy Payments (Continuity of Employment in Local Government etc.) 
(Modifications) Order 19999.

21 PAYMENTS FOR RETURNING OFFICERS DURING LOCAL ELECTIONS
Payments for the Chief Executive and Executive Directors who are Returning Officers are 
made in accordance with their respective JNC Conditions of Service. The current Head of 
Paid Service relinquishes this payment in the favour of the District Chief Executives who 
fulfil the role of the Deputy Returning Officers.  

Payments for employees at Head of Service and below for Local Election duties are made 
in accordance with the Local Scheme of Conditions of Service.

8 See Glossary Page 12

9  Under the Employment Rights Act 1996 (ERA), an employee can count service with an 'associated 
employer' towards the service requirement for a redundancy payment (i.e. two years) and, if appropriate, for 
calculating that payment.

Page 195

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/pay-allowances-and-benefits/pay-and-grading-policy-and-procedure/101147.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/recruitment-selection-and-induction/fixed-term-and-temporary-contracts-policy-and-procedure/88508.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/recruitment-selection-and-induction/fixed-term-and-temporary-contracts-policy-and-procedure/88508.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/terms-and-conditions/local-scheme-of-conditions-of-service/59080.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/pay-allowances-and-benefits/travel-and-subsistence-allowances/59066.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/terms-and-conditions/local-scheme-of-conditions-of-service/59080.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/terms-and-conditions/local-scheme-of-conditions-of-service/59080.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/managing-change-staff-leaving-and-retirement/redundancy-and-early-retirements/58688.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/managing-change-staff-leaving-and-retirement/flexible-retirement/59138.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/terms-and-conditions/local-scheme-of-conditions-of-service/59080.article


22 PAY POLICY SUB-COMMITTEE
The Pay Policy Sub-Committee undertakes an annual review of the salaries of the Chief 
Executive and Executive Directors.  The Sub-Committee comprises of Councillors from the 
Appointments Committee, representing the political balance of the Council overall in 
accordance with the terms of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

23 LCC GREEN BOOK10 NEGOTIATING TEAM
The Negotiating Team considers pay issues relating to all employees within the scope of 
NJC pay awards.

24 RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN SENIOR OFFICERS PAY AND CONDITIONS 
WITH OTHER OFFICERS
(including the lowest paid)

The approaches for determining senior management pay are set out in paragraph 4 above.

The approach for determining other employees’ pay, including the lowest paid employees, 
is set out in paragraph 5 above.

25 PAY MULTIPLES (or pay dispersion)
Pay multiple is the ratio between the salary of the highest paid employee and the median 
full time equivalent salary of the organisation. The pay multiple is often referred to as ‘pay 
dispersion.’
.
For 2018-19 the pay multiple is 4 which is the same as the previous year.

There is no formal mechanism for direct comparison between pay levels of the wider 
workforce with Senior Manager Pay and there are no Council policies on reaching or 
maintaining a specific pay multiple.

26 RE-ENGAGEMENT OF FORMER SENIOR MANAGERS
The policy for appointing or re-engaging any Senior Manager who has previously been 
made redundant by the Council, or who is in receipt of a local government pension, is that 
there should be a presumption against re-employment for a period of 6 months following 
the end of their employment. However, in exceptional circumstances Senior Managers may 
be re-employed by the Council more quickly provided that it is not within one month and 
one day of their leaving date.

In approving a re-employment of a Senior Manager, Members will need to be satisfied that:

 the employee is not being re-employed in a role or capacity, which is broadly similar to 
the role from which they were made redundant;

 the rate of pay applied to the work undertaken by the re-engaged employee should be 
that appropriate to the work to be done and not the grading which applied to the 
employee prior to the end of their current contract;

 the employment should be for a fixed term, not exceeding one year, unless there are 
exceptional circumstances; and the arrangement must provide financial / operational 
advantage to the Council.

10 See Glossary Page 12

Page 196



The policy of the Lincolnshire Pension Fund is not to abate pensions should any officer 
retire and then return to work for the Council.

27 THE USE OF CONTRACTS FOR SERVICES AND APPOINTMENT OF 
CONSULTANTS

The HMRC requires the Council to determine whether an arrangement with a consultant or 
contractor constitutes a contract of employment or can be deemed to be on a self-employed 
basis.

The determination will need to be made for every agreement that is proposed as the 
decision on status relates to the contract, not the individual.  This must be undertaken 
before any engagement is agreed or any contract signed.

Where it is determined that an engagement constitutes a contract of employment, normal 
Council terms and conditions will apply and the work must be paid for at the evaluated rate 
for the job.

It may be appropriate to re-engage a former employee as a consultant with a contract for 
service in certain circumstances. This may be appropriate:

 For discrete pieces of work where the former employee has the appropriate skill and 
experience which is not available elsewhere in the Council.

 Where it is more cost effective

 Where it is difficult to recruit due to market conditions

 Where work of an urgent nature arises at short notice.

Such arrangements should be time limited, and be subject to appropriate written 
agreements covering the nature, duration, quality standards, and the basis on which the 
agreement will be terminated.  The written agreement must be signed before the 
arrangement commences.

Initial consideration for providing cover for urgent work should be through the use of 
temporary employment contracts advertised in the usual manner or through acting up or 
secondment arrangements made available to existing staff. This should particularly be true 
where the work relates to the normal business of the service area, as opposed to defined 
projects or one off tasks.

It is our duty under the Pensions Act 2008 to comply with auto-enrolment Regulations and 
an assessment will be made on whether the contractor is an employee rather than a 
contractor and therefore pensionable under the Act.

In determining whether a consultant is genuinely self-employed, the Council will take into 
account, not only the contractual terms agreed, but also the realities of the employment 
relationship.  This will include whether there is provision for substitution and whether 
resources are provided by the Council or by the consultant.  These examples are not 
exhaustive and are purely illustrative of the type of factors to be taken into account.

Page 197



28 PERSONAL SERVICE CONTRACTS
In the contracting sector, the generally accepted definition of a personal service company is 
a limited company that typically has a sole director, the contractor, who owns most or all of 
the shares.

Many contractors choose to work for clients using their own limited companies for many 
reasons.  Limited companies can be a tax efficient way for contractors to work, as they 
often split their income between salary and dividends, which means they do not pay, 
employers’ or employees’ Class 1 National Insurance Contributions on a large part of their 
overall income.

Personal Service contracts prevent the risk of there being a contract of service, or an 
employment relationship with the Council which eliminates any income tax liability on the 
Council.

By using a limited liability company, contractors are also insulated to a certain extent from 
business risk.

The Council does not currently have any such contracts in place for normal employment. 

From the 6 April 2017, the Government changed the rules in relation to off-payroll working 
in the Public Sector for intermediaries.   The Council's policy on Agency and Other Off-
Payroll Working Guidance was updated in line with these changes.

29 GENDER PAY GAP INFORMATION
In accordance with the Equality Act 2010 (Specific Duties and Public Authorities) 
Regulations 2017, which came into force on the 31 March 2017, employers with at least 
250 employees are required to publish annual information as at 31 March each year.  This 
information is published on the Council's website and also externally and on the 
Governments Gender Pay Gap website. 

Page 198

http://www.contractorcalculator.co.uk/Company_Formation.aspx
http://www.contractorcalculator.co.uk/dividend_tax_rules_change_calculator_published_498410_news.aspx
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/off-payroll-working-in-the-public-sector-personal-service-companies
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/off-payroll-working-in-the-public-sector-personal-service-companies
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/recruitment-selection-and-induction/agency-and-other-off-payroll-working-guidance/65107.article
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/recruitment-selection-and-induction/agency-and-other-off-payroll-working-guidance/65107.article
https://gender-pay-gap.service.gov.uk/Viewing/search-results?p=1&y=2017&s=&search&_sm_au_=iVVK75H0t0tHHQN3


APPENDIX A

Senior Manager Pay Structure – from April 2017

Salary (£) Chief Executive - £176,708

Executive Directors -  £128,515

Senior Leadership Pay Band

Pay Range
Pay Zone Zones

Post Titles

Max Med Min

Director 
Band

Single 
Zone Director of Public Health 125,438 110,725 102,012

Chief Operating Officer (Development Services
County Finance Officer
Assistant Director Children's (Lead Early Help)
Assistant Director Children's (Safeguarding)
Consultant in Public Health (Medically Qual)
Assistant Director - Joint Commissioning and 
Specialist Services (Adults) 

Zone A

Assistant Director - Adult Frailty and Long-term 
Conditions
Chief Digital Officer

104,056 91,264 82,624

Chief Commercial Officer
Chief Commissioning Officer – Learning
Chief Commissioning Officer - Children's
Chief Legal Officer
Consultant in Public Health

Zone B

County Commissioner for Economy & Place

89,278 78,230 71,327

Children's Services Manager (SEND)
Children's Services Manager (Locality)
Children's Services Manager (Regulated 
North/Fostering)
Children's Services Manager (Regulated 
South/Adoption)
Planning & Environment Commissioner
Safer Communities Manager
Service Manager – People

Se
ni

or
 L

ea
de

rs
hi

p

Zone C
County Manager (Older Adult Frailty & Long Term 
Conditions; Learning Disabilities; Special Projects 
and Hospital Services; Adult Safeguarding)
County Manager – Business Support
Highway Asset Manager
Highway Network Manager
Group Manager – Transport Services
Infrastructure Commissioner
Head of ICT

76,278 67,886 62,664

Page 199



Consultant (Public Health) reporting to Director of Public Health
Band 8 *

£65,922.00

£67,805.00

£70,631.00

£74,084.00

£77,850.00

£81,618.00

Band 9 *
£77,850.00

£81,618.00

£85,535.00

£89,640.00

£93,944.00

£98,453.00

* N.B. Director and Consultant roles in Public Health transferred into the Council on the 1 April 2013 
from the NHS as part of the Health and Social Care Act 2012.  The transfer was under TUPE, 
therefore terms and conditions of employment, including salary, are protected.

Fire & Rescue Service Management Team 
Chief Fire Officer £115,497

Deputy Chief Fire Officer £ 92,489

Assistant Chief Fire Officer £ 86,709

Page 200



APPENDIX B 

Lincolnshire County Council
Salary Structure from 1 April 2016-18  NJC for Local Government Services

LCC Pay Spine for staff up to and including Head of Service 

1 April 
2016

1 April 
2017

This Pay Spine is anchored to salary points on the NJC National 
Pay Spine and these salaries are shown in bold.  The relevant 
Lincolnshire points are scp's  2, 3, 6, 9, 12,15, 18, 21, 24, 27, 30 
and 33
Scp 1 – Apprentice Rate & Business Support - Foundation

GLPC Points Score

1 13449 13583 Apprentice Rate
2 14514 15014    
3 14771 15246 G1  Grade 1 = 182 - 227
4 15107 15495    
5 15284 15624     
6 15507 15807 G2   Grade 2 = 228 - 267
7 16070 16370    
8 16606 16906     
9 17169 17419 G3    Grade 3 = 268 - 307

10 17839 18017     
11 18540 18725     
12 19238 19430 G4     Grade 4 = 308 - 347
13 20073 20273    
14 20910 21119     
15 21745 21962 G5      Grade 5 = 348 - 387
16 22476 22700    
17 23205 23437     
18 23935 24174 G6       Grade 6 = 388 - 427
19 24808 25056    
20 25682 25939     
21 26556 26822 G7         Grade 7 = 428 - 467
22 27711 27988    
23 28762 29049     
24 29854 30153 G8         Grade 8 = 468 - 507
25 30945 31255    
26 32025 32345     
27 33106 33437 G9          Grade 9 = 508 - 547
28 34382 34726    
29 35660 36017     
30 36937 37306 G10          Grade10 = 548 -587
31 38474 38859    
32 40013 40413     
33 41551 41967 G11           Grade 11 = 588 - 627
34 43697 44134    
35 45844 46302     
36 47992 48472 G12            Grade 12 = 628 - 667
37 49602 50098    
38 51211 51723     
39 52820 53348 G13             Grade 13 = 668 - 707
40 54430 54974     
41 56040 56600     
42 57649 58225 G14              Grade 14 = 708 - 747
43 59258 59850    
44 60868 61476     
45 62478 63102 G15               Grade 15 = 748 - 787
46 64087 64727    
47 65695 66352    
48 67305 67978 G16               Grade 16 = 788 - 827

Page 201



Part 3 Paragraph 2.6(e) Sleeping-in Duty Payment

1 April 16
£34.34

1 April 2017
£34.68

Paragraph 35 Standby Duty Allowance - Social Workers (1)(a)(i) Allowance - Per 
Session 

1 April 16
£27.62

1 April 2017
£27.90

Page 202



APPENDIX C

Glossary of Terms
Spot Salary:
Spot salaries within the Council are fixed to a specifically defined spinal column 
point.  There is no progression up to or beyond the rate for each position.  Spot 
salaries are one of the least discriminatory of pay methods because everyone is 
paid the rate for the job from day one and the pay structure cannot be distorted by 
differential progression.  

JNC for Local Authority Chief Officers
The primary role of the Joint Negotiating Committee is a national body to reach 
agreement on a national framework on all national pay and service conditions and 
items related to any dispute for all chief officers.

NJC for Brigade Managers (Gold Book)
The primary role of the National Joint Committee for Brigade Managers of Fire and 
Rescue Services (the NJC) is to reach agreement on a national framework of pay 
and conditions for Brigade Managers for local application throughout the Fire and 
Rescue Service in the UK.

JNC for Local Authority Chief Executives
The Joint Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Executives of Local Authorities is 
the national negotiating body for the pay and conditions of service of Chief 
Executives in England and Wales. The Authorities’ Side consists of elected 
members nominated by the Local Government Association. The Staff Side consists 
of Chief Executives nominated by the Association of Local Authority Chief 
Executives (ALACE).  ALACE is registered as an independent trade union.

NJC for Local Government Services
The pay and terms of conditions of employment for Local Government Services' 
workers is determined by the National Joint Council for Local Government 
Services.  The NJC for Local Government Services has 70 members: 12 on the 
employers' side and 58 on the trade union side.

In 1997, the NJC for Local Government Services agreed a national framework with 
potential for local modification to suit local service requirements.  Known as The 
Single Status Agreement, these pay and conditions of service agreements are 
published in The Green Book: Local Government Scheme of Conditions of 
Service.

Greater London Provincial Council (GLPC) Job Evaluation Scheme
The Council use the scheme developed to support local authorities in carrying out 
their obligations under the national agreement on single status. The job evaluation 
scheme was the subject of consultation with the Equal Opportunities Commission.  
The scheme is jointly agreed by the employers and unions in London local 
government.  It was developed by a working party of experienced evaluators and 
tested jointly at regional and local authority levels.

The scheme is accompanied by a code of good practice and a framework 
procedure to inform local arrangements.

Page 203

http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/pay-allowances-and-benefits/pay-and-grading-policy-and-procedure/101147.article
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/jobs/manuals/employment-manual/pay-allowances-and-benefits/pay-and-grading-policy-and-procedure/101147.article


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 15 December 2017
	6 Council Budget 2018/19
	7 Council Business Plan 2018-2020
	Appendix A - Council Business Plan 2018-2020 03-01-18
	Appendix B Changes
	Appendix C Equalities Objectives

	8 Interim Arrangements following the Resignation of the Chief Executive
	Appendix A - Amendments to the Constitution

	9 Lincolnshire Health and Wellbeing Board Membership Review
	Appendix A - Extract from The Constitution
	Appendix B - HWB Report_ Membership Review_Dec 2017_Appendix B

	10 Members Allowance Scheme 2018/19
	Appendix A - LCC IRP recommendations 2018
	Appendix B - Revised Part 6 - Members' Allowances Scheme

	11 Pay Policy Statement
	Appendix A - Final Pay Policy Statement 2018 - 19


